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Our Vision:

An effcient rond nehlork for a prospcrous nation
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ACRO .AB oNs G SSARY OF

KRB - Kenya Roads Board

KeNHA - Kenya National Highways Authority

KURA - Kcnya Urban Roads AuthoritY

KeRRA - Kenya Rural Roads Authority

KWS - Kenya Wildlife Service

RICS - Road Inventory & Condition Survey

RSIP - Road Scctor Investnent Prognmme

APRP - Amusl Public Roads Programme
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KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023

KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

a) Background Information:

Kenya Roads Board (KRB) is a state body corporate established under Chapter 408
of the Laws of Kenya 'Kenya Roads Board Act' which came into effect under Legal
Notice No. 7 of 7999. The Board was established in accordance with the Chapter 1146

(State Corporations Act) of the Laws of Kenya, which is' An Act of Parliament to make
prwision for tlrc establisltment of state corporations: for control and regulation of state
corporations; and for connected purposes.

The Board is domiciled and operates within the Republic of Kenya. The registered
office is as set out on this report.

b) Principle Activity:

As stipulated in the Kenya Roads Board Act, 7999 "71rc object and purpose for which the
Board is established. is to wersee the road nettoork in Kenya and coordinate the maintenance,
relubilitation and deoelopment funded by the fund and to adaise the Minister responsible for
matters pertaining to roads on all matters related thereto."

c) Specific Mandates:

The mandates of KRB are provided for in the Kenya Roads Board Act, No. 7 of 1999
as hereunder:

(a) 'Coordinate tlrc optinnl utilization of tlu Fund in implementation of programmes
relating to the maintenance, rehabilitation and deaelopment of the road nefwork;
seek to achieoe optimal efficiercy and cost effectioeness in roadworks funded by the
Fund;
manage the Fund;
based on a foe-year road inoestment progrannrc approoed by the Minister and the
Minister for Finance, detennine tlrc allocation of fnancial resources front any other
source aaailable to the Board required by road agencies for the maintenance,
relubilitotion, nnd daeloptnent of the road, nehlork to msure tlnt the allocation of funds
is pegged to specific categoies of roads and tlut not less than
(i) ttuenty tloo percent (22%), tohich shall be deposited into a specill bank account

to be called Constitumcy Road Fund Account to be maintained by eoery
constituency of monies from the Fund is allocated equally to all Constituencies
in the country to be administeretl by the Rurul Roads Authoity;

(ii) ten percent (70%) of the monies from the Fund is allocated for tlrc maintenance
or deuelopment of link roads between constituencies and to sertse as Gouernment
counterpart funds in funding works on rural roads, to be administered by the
Kenya Rural Roads Authority and tlut tlrc said per centum slull be equally
tlistibuted to the constitumcies wlere Ketya Rural Roads Authoity lus the

mandate.

(b)

k)
(d)

I\



KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
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k)

(iii) forty percent (40%) of the monies from the Fund is allocated in respect of tlv
'naional 

roads to be administered by the National Highways Authority;

(izt) ffteen percent (1'5%) of the ntoniei ftom the Fund is allocated in respect of the

Urban Roads AuthoritY;
(a) one percent (1%) of thL monies lrom the Fund is allocated in respect of roads in.

national parks and'resen:es to bi administered by the KenyaWildlife Sertice, an.d

(t;i)amaximunroftzoopercent(2%)ofthemoniesfromtheFundisallocatedin
respect of recunent expenditure of tlrc Boartl under scction iL(5)'

ensure that thi remainder oj the moniei from the Fund (10%) desuibed in paragraph.

(d) shatt be allocated onrrilty by the Boart! with tlrc approaal of the Minister to road

inoestfient prografifiE deioed lrom tlu frte-year road inttestment programme

approtsed by tlrc Minister responsible for roads antl the Minister for Finance'

eni.sure thai amaximum of ten percent (10%) of all monies allocated to each road agency

is utilized for deaelopntent purposes by tle said agency

monitor and eaaluate, by means of teclnical, fnancial and performance audits, the

detiaery of goods, uorks and serztices funded by the Fund;

in imptemhting paragraph (8), pay due regard to public procurement and disposal

regulations and additional guidelines issued or approued by tfu Minister;
riommend to tlrc Mittistir appropriate leoels of road user charges, fnes, petalties,

leaies, or any sums required to be collected trnder the Road Maintenance Laty Fund

Act, 1993 and paid into the Fund.
recomnrcnd to the Minister such periodic reuiants of the Fuel Leuy as are necessary for
the purposes of the Fund, and

identifu, quaitifu and recontmend to the Minister such other potentinl sources of.

,*rnie ns may be noailable to the Fund for the dnelopmett, rehabilitation and

maintenance of roads.'

a

@)

(D

(i)

a)

k)

d) Key Management:

The entity's day-to-day management is under the following key organs:

Board of Directors
Accounting officer/ Director General
Executive Committee of Management (Excom)

e) FiduciaryManagement

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30th

June 2023 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

L. Director General - Rashid Mohamed, MBS
2. Director, Finance & Finance Management - CPA Ma*in Agumbi
3. Director, Poliry & Planning - Eng. Tom Omai
4. Director, Highways - CPA Paul Kibet
5. Director, Corporate Services - Mr. Hamoud M. Mguza
6. Director, Urban & Park - Eng. Isaac Maina
7. Director, Rural & County - Eng. Wilson Kosgey
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8. Deputy Director, Intemal Audit & Assurance - CPA James Mugoh
9. Deputy Director, Legal Services - Ms. Catherine Kassim
10. Deputy Director, Supply Chain Management - Mr. Isaack Ibrahim

f) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements:

The following committees provide fiduciary oversight over the management and
activities of the Board;

1. Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board
2. Finance Committee of the Board
3. Technical Committee of the Board
4. Human Resources and Management Committee of the Board
5. Executive Committee of Management (Ex-COM)

g) Financial Statements:

Kenya Roads Board was established by the KRB Act No. 7 of 1999 which states as
follows;

Section 4 (7): "There is established n Board to be knoun as the Kenya Roads Board."

Section 6 (2) (a):"Witlout prejudice to the generality of subsection (1), the Board
slull - manage thc Fundi'

The KRB Act No. 7 of 1999 also establishes the Kenya Roads Board Fund as follows;

Section 31 (1): "There is established a Fund to be knmon as the Kenya Roads Board
Fund uhich shall l,est in thc Board."

Section 31 (2): "There shall be paid into tlrc Fund -
(a) nll proceeds from the Road Maintenance L,eoy Funcl;
(b) such moneys or assets as nwy accrue to or aest in the Board in the course of the

exercise of its powers or tle perfonnance of its functions under this Act or under any
otlrcr witten law;
(c) strch swns as may be payable to the Board pursuant to tltis Act or any other
written law, or pursuant to any gift or trust;
(d) all moneys front any other source proaided for or donated or lent to

the Boarrl;
(e) such monies as mny be appropriated by the National Assembly for the

deuelopment, maintenance and relubilitation of roads. (a) all proceeds front the Rond

Maintenance Leay Fundi'

These Financial Statements are presented in respect of all monies accruing to the
Kenya Roads Board Fund as stipulated by Section 84 (1) of the Public Finance
Management Act, No. 18 of 2012.

li



Section84.(7):,,Theadmittistratorofanationalpublicfundestablislud.by.the'
Constitution, or an Act of Parliament ilull prepare fnancial statements for the- fund

Joreachfinancialyearin'aformprescribedbytheAccountingstandardsBoard"'

Section 31 (4) of the KRB Act provides that "Tlrcre slnll be paid out of 
-the 

Fund any

,rpiditrrr'inrrrred by the Boaid in the exercise of its pouers or the performance of its

fu'nctions unfur this,ict. This expenditure is presented as part of the Financial

Statements.

KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023

h) Registered Officdlleadquarters & Contacts:

Kenya Re-Towers, 3rd Floor
Off Ragati Road, Upper Hill
P.O. Box 73778- 00200, CitY Square

NAIROBI, KENYA

Tel. No.: 4980000, 2722865/ 6

Fax No. : 25 4-020 -27 23'l 61

Website: www.krb.go.ke
E-mail address: info@krb.go.ke

i) Principal Bankers:

Central Bank of Kenya
Haile Selassie Avenue
P.O. Box 60000-00200,

NAIROBI,KENYA

Citibank N.A
Citibank House, Upper Hill
P.O Box 30711-00100, GPO
NAIROBI, KENYA

j) IndependentAuditors:

Auditor General
Office of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University WaY

P.O. Box 30084, GPO 00100

Nairobi, Kenya

k) Principal Legal Adviser:

The Attomey General
State Law office, Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112, City Square 00200

Nairobi, Kenya
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THE BOARD OF DIR ECTORS

The Board draws representatives from public and private stakeholders as set out in
Section 7 of the Kenya Roads Board Act, 1999.

Board members in FY 2022/2023 include the following: -

tative
Chairman, Kenya Roads Board
Kenya Transporters Association

Hon. Ahmed Kolosh
Appointed on Stt, April 2023

Kenya Roads Board

CPA. Rashid Mohamed, MBS

(Director General)

V III
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Eng. joseph M. Mbugua

I€, State Department of Roads

Ministry of Roads & TransPort

I

Dr. Chris Kiptoo, CBS

IlS, The National Treasury

I

I

! le
1.........

PS, State Department for Devolution -

Ministry of Devolution

resia Mbaika Malokwe

I\
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I
Abdi Dubat Fidhow

Mohamed Daghar

[5, State Department for EAC,
Ministry of EAC ASALs & Regional
Development

PS, State Department for Transport -
Ministry of Roads & Transport

&
..ri,

Eng. John Nyaguti
Retired on 1lth lune 2023

Member
Institution of Engineers of Kenya

x
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Mr. Wilson Ndirangu Kamau

Retired on 1Yn lvne 2023

Member
Institute of SurveYors of KenYa

r
Mr. Francis Theuri

Appointed on Sth August 2022

Member
Automobile Association of KenYa

Ms. Phyllis Wakiaga
Appointed on 5t1' August 2022

Member
Kenya Association of Manufacturers

\I
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,ri r.

Member

Institute of Certified Public
Accountants

CP

Ret

A Charles Tirok
ired on 11 , lune 2023

Alternate Board members inFY 2022/2023 include the following

Altemate Representative Organization

Mr. Abednego Etyang State Department of Roads - Ministry of
Roads & Trans rt

Mr. Jackson Mwangi
Appointed on 20tt, Dec 2022

Dominic Yegon Kiplangat
Serued up to Dec 2022

James Mwanzia
Sented up to i1n luly 2022

State Department for Devolution -
Ministry of Devolution

Mr. lulius Mwabu State Department for EAC - Ministry of
EAC, ASATS and Regional Development

Mr. Paul King'ori State Department of Transport - Ministry 
i

of Roads & Transport 
i

Mr. Badu Sora Katelo
Seroed up to February 202j

The National Treasury

\II
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KEY MANAG EMENTTEAM

ProfileName
The Director General holds a
Business Administration from Oxford
University, United Kingdom, and a Bachelor

of Commerce from the University of Nairobi'
He is a registered member of the Institute of

Certified Public Accountants of Kenya

(ICPAK) and has served in the Council of
ICPAK. The Director General joined the

Board as a Financial Controller and was

appointed the Director Finance in 2008 on

return from the University of Oxford. He

briefly served as the inaugural Director

Corporate Services in Kenya National

Highways Authority and was instrumental in
setting up the institution during its formative
years.

The Director General has over 25 years

managerial experience in finance in both
public and private sector institutions and has

been engaged in Public Poliry and

governance matters. He is a highly respected

thought leader with exposure in advocacy,

strategy, risk management, Private equity,
and resource mobilization initiatives. He was

recognized for his exemplary service to the

nation and conferred with the Prestigious
Moran of the Order of the Burning Spear
(MBS) award.

The Director General is also involved in
various social enterprise initiatives in
Northem Kenya targeting the youth and
women.

Master's in

R. Mohamed, MBS
Director General

X III
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CPA Martin Agumbi
Director - Finance & Fund Management

CPA Martin Agumbi holds a Bachelor of
Commerce from the University of Nairobi
and is a registered member of the Institute of
Certified Public Accountants of Kenya
0CPAK).

CPA Martin has over 20 years' experience in
financial management, audit, financial
reporting, Strategic Planning, and budgeting,
gained in both the Public and Private sectors.

CPA Martin has attended leadership
prograrunes in Strategic Development,
Enterprise Risk Management, Ethics &
Govemance and Performance Budgeting.

Prior to joining the Board, CPA Martin
worked for leading Audit & Accounting
Firms in the region.

Eng. Tom Omai
Director - Policy & Strategy

q

Eng. Omai holds a Masters in Project Planning
& Management and a Bachelor of Science in
Civil Engineering both from the University of
Nairobi. He is a registered profession
engineer with the Engineers Boatd of Kenya
and a corporate member of the Institution of
Engineers of Kenya.

Eng. Omai has over 15 year's practical
experience in Strategic Planning, Project
management, Performance Based

Contracting, Procurement of Roadworks and
services, Highway designs and management
using computer aided tools and Road
Management Systems, Roadworks Cost
Estimation Systems, Road Transport Poliry
formulation and Research & Development.
Prior to joining the Board in 2015, Eng Omai
worked in the Ministry of Roads, Kenya
Urban Roads Authority and Machakos
County Government.

Eng. Omai is actively involved in community
work and is the current Patron of
Kenyamware Pirates Football Club, Nyamira
County.

x l\/
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CPA Kibet holds an MBA and

Bachelor of Commerce Degree

from the University of Nairobi. He

is a CPA arrd mcmber of ICPAK.

CPA Kibct joined thc Board

No'u ember 2009. Prior to joining the

Board, he rvas the Head of lnternal
Auclit at Kcnya Medical Research

lnstitute (KEMRI), where lris main

role was providing audit and

assurance services to the Institute.
Kibet has also workecl with the

Office of the Auditor General
where he was resPonsible for
various auclit portfolios.

CPA Kibet has a wealth of audit
work experience sPanning over 23

years in the public sector. These

inclucles audit assurance, risk
rnanagerncnt, Inonitoring,
evaluation, and ilnpact ass€'ssnlent

of projects for Value for MoneY.

CPA Paul Kibet
D ircctor, HightlLrrls

Hamoucl holds a Master's Degree
in Public Policl' & Administration,
a Bachelor's Degree in
Government & Public
Adrninistratiorr, Higher Diploma
in Humatr Resource Management
and is a Ccrtified Human Resource

Professional, CHRP(K).

Harnoud has over 20 Years'
experience in Human Resources
and Ad mir.ristration having worked
in botlr thc Public and Private
sector.

CHRP Hamoud Mguza
D ira c ttt r, Cttrpo ra t e S e roi ces
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Eng. Wilson Kosgey
Director, Rural €t County Roads

I

Eng. Kosgey holds a Master's
Degree in Transportation
Engineering and a Bachelor of
Science Degree in Civil Engineering
from the University of Nairobi. He
is a registered engineer with the
Engineers Board of Kenya and a
member of the Institution of
Engineers of Kenya.

He has over 25 years' experience in
design and supervision of road
construction proiects, work
planning monitoring and
evaluation of roadworks programs,
socio-economic & impact studies of
road projects and Value for Money
audits of RMLF funded programs.

Eng. Isaac Maina
Director, Urban €t Park Roads

,(

Eng. Maina holds a Bachelor of
Science in Civil Engineering from
the University of Nairobi. He is a
registered engineer with the
Engineers Board of Kenya and a
member of the Institution of
Engineers of Kenya.

Prior to ioining the Board in 2018,
Isaac served as an Assistant
Director in KURA, Design &
Construction Department-
Structures Section and KURA
Cenhal Regional Office. Isaac has
worked with TerraConsult
Engineers, a private Civil
Engineering firm, and the Ministry
of Public works (Structural
Department) as a structural
Engineer.

x\"I
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Mr. Issack Ibrahim was aPPointed
as the Deputy Director, SuPPIY

Chain Management effective 1st

March 2023. He holds an MBA and

Bachelor of Commerce Degree

from the UniversitY of Nairobi.

He also holds a Postgraduate
Professional Diploma from
Chartered Institute of Purchasing
& Supplies, CPA Part Il, and

Member of Kenya Institute of
Supplies Management and
Chartered Institute of SuPPlies

Management (UK). Prior to ioining
the Board, Issack was an Auditor
at the Office of the Auditor
General.

*

t'p

Isaack Mohamed Ibrahim
Depug Director, Supply Chain Management

James is currently Pursuing a

Master of Science (Finance and

Accounting) from the University of
Nairobi, holds an undergraduate
BA degree in Economics also from
University of Nairobi. He is also a

Certified Public Accountant of
Kenya (CPA - K), Certified Internal
Auditor (CIA - USA), Certified
Inlormation Systems Auditor
(CISA - USA), Certified Forensics

Exarniner (ACFE). In addition, he

has certificates in Anti-MoneY
Laundering (AML) and Anti-Fraud
and Corruption Strategies from
BDO East Africa and corPorate
governance from Centre of
Corporate Governance.

CPA James K. Mugoh is a

multiskilled strategic thinker with
over 18 years of proven work
experience in internal audit, risk
management and comPliance, 15

years of which have been at
management level.

CPA James K. Mugoh
Deputy Director, Internal Audit €t Risk

Assurance

XVII
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Members of the Board, it is rny pleasure to present the Annual
Report and Financial Statements for Kenya Roads Board Fund for the year ended
30th June 2023.

General Economic Environment

Kenya managed to contain the health and economic impacts of multiple COVID-19
waves in 2021, helped by targeted containment measures and progress on
vaccinatiory but is now facing a potentially large economic shock from the war in
Ukraine.

Kenya's economic performance remained strong in the early months of 2023, but
external challenges have mounted. Kenya's exposure to the war in Ukraine through
direct trade linkages is moderate, with Russia and Ukraine accounting for only 2.1
percent of total goods trade between 2015 and 2022.

However, the economy is vulnerable to the commodity price shocks resulting from
the war, particularly through fuel, fertilizer, wheat, and other food imports. Global
financial conditions have also tightened sharply, increasing external financing costs.

A strong recovery in revenue collection by Kenya Revenue Authority (KRA) has
supported fiscal performance but this is now being countered by the cost of
subsidizing fuel. The rebound in economic activity and ongoing tax reforms and
revenue administration improvements have boosted revenue collection. Revenue in
the current fiscal year through Q3 remained on target and performed above the
previous year's outturn.

Kenya's economy has staged a moderate recovery from the worst economic effects
of the pandemic. Estimates released by the Kenya National Bureau of Statistics
(KNBS) indicate that the economy advanced 2.99 per cent year-on-year in January
2022 slightly lower than the estimated growth in Sub-Saharan Africa of 4 percent. In
the April 2023 released World Economic Outlook, IMF projected that Kenya would
grow at a rate of 5.3 percent in 2023 from 5.1 percent forecasted in October 2022.

Going forward into the medium term, the Govemment will continue with its
expenditure prioritization policy with a view to achieving the transformative
development agenda, which is anchored on provision of core services, ensuring
equity, and minimizing costs through the elimination of duplication and
inefficiencies, creation of employment opportunities and improving the general
welfare of the people. This will curtail growth in public expenditures to ensure it
attains its fiscal consolidation path over the medium term and ensure debt is

maintained within sustainable levels.

\\,III



National Agenda

TheBudgetPolicyStatement(BPS)outlinespolicymeasuresthatwillcontinueto
stimulate-resilieni and sustainable economic recovery. The policies are anchored on

the Medium-Term Plan III of the Vision 2030 and focuses on creating an enabling

environment for businesses and industrial recovery, iob creation, and safeguarding

Iivelihoods. In this respect, the Government will strenSthen implementation of

prograrunes and stritegies that ensure a more inclusive growth' foster

*uJoe"o.,o-i" stability and avail liquidity to the private sector including initiating

innovative products to boost credit to Micro, small and Medium EntelPrises

(MSMES).

The National Treasury and Plarudng is developing the National Tax Policy and has

initiated the preparaiion of the Medium-Term Revenue Strategy (MTRS) both of

which will strengthen revenue mobilization and reinJorce the fiscal consolidation

plan. This .orpiid with expe'diture prioritizatio. will ensure the fiscal deficit

remains at debt stabilizing levels going forward.

Further, the Government will accelerate imPlementation of the "Bi8 Four" Agenda

which has gained traction over the past three years. The agenda is designed to help

achieve th; social and economic pillars of our Vision 2030 and the development

aspirations espoused in the Kenyan constitution. Actualization of policies and

programmes under each pillar is expected to accelerate and sustain the BPS -

inclirsive of growth, create oPPortunities for decerlt.iobs, reduce Poverty and income

inequality u.,d 
"r,.uru 

that we create a healthy and food secule society in which

Kenyans have access to affordable and decent housing.

Kenya Roads Board StrategY

The Board,s strategic Plan (2018 , 2022) targeted to have 100% of maintainable roads

(roads in good or fiir condition) included in the APRP by the end of the plan period'
The Board has continued to imPlement its five-year Strategic Plaru which

successfully came to an end on 30th June 2023 with the Board achieving its intended

strategic objectives with key achievements for the 5-year period including exceeding

5 yeir funding targets and implementing S-year APRPs, develoPment and

implementation of Road Sector Investment Programme (RSIP) II, development of
KRB Rules (2022), reorgaruzation of the structure for efficiency, among others.

Specifically, during the Fy 2022/2023 the Kenya Roads Board Fund collections

eiceeded ihe estimates; the APRP for FY 2022/23 was approved and implemented

during the year; the Board carried out monitoring and evaluation of utilization of the

KRB Fund; and the internal capacity was strengthened to ensure effective delivery of
the Board's mandates. Other achievements are enumerated in a different section of
this report.

KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
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The Annual Public Roads Programme (APRP) for Fy 2022/n is aligned to thc Bl5
2022 and ra,ill contribute to maintenance and rehabilitation of roat'ls in the medium
term to spur economic growth and developmcnt. Furthcr, thc APRP will promote
Roads 2000 strategy where applicable', through investments that utilize more local
resources, create jobs, and therebv support the Government's Local Content Policy.

Outlook

Kenya Roarls Boarr.l shall continue to maximize on opportunitics for enhanced
partnerships and collaborations with other agencies, rlevelopment partners and
private sector for bettcr service r"leliverv to the public.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR GENERAL

Overview

Road Reclassification

Kenya Roads Board has continued to carry out its mandate of effectively and

efficiently managing the Kenya Roads Board Fund' During the year under review'

the Kenya RoadiBoird Act was amended, giving the Board- powers to-borrow funds-

This provides the Board with a great oppoitr.,.ity to raise funds to address the road

maintenance backlog in the country.

W 2022/?023 marked the last year of the Board's 4th Strategic Plan (2017 /78-
2022/ 23). We are happy to not" th"t the Board has achieved its ambitious

performance targets sei i., the annual business plan for FY 2022/ 2023 which ensured

overall achievement of the goals and obiectives set out in the 5-year Plan'

The Road Sector Investment Progtamme

The Road Sector Investment Programme (RSIP) is a medium-term plan that outlines

the development and maintenance priorities for the road network. It provides the

framework to guarantee road network quality tfuough systematic planning and

budgeting and i rational approach to funding road subsector spending. Currently,

the iraint-enance backlog in Kenya is estimated at Kshs. 700 billion, constituting of

roads in poor conditions that need to be restored to good condition'

The Board coordinated the preparation of the 2"a Road sector Investment

Programme 2018 - 2022 (RSIP II) in line with the requirements of section 34(1) of the

Kenlya Roads Act,2OO7.In the previous FY 2021, / 2022, the Board concluded RSIP II

e11.b-2022), and an evaluation report showed 89% physical achievement for road

works with a funding deficit of Kshs. 121 billion.

Lessons leamt were documented and they info ned the structure of the next RSIP III
(2023-2OZn whose development commenced in lanuary 2023. Quality road network

data is important, and the first 7 months of the assignment was dedicated to data

collection ind collation, with the report due in July 2023. The final RSIP III is expected

to be ready by end ofF\ 2023 /2024.

The country,s road assets are estimated at over Kshs 3.5 trillion and represents one

of the couniry's largest public investments. Thus, there is need to entrench the road

asset managem".,i it th" country's development strategy to facilitate their

development and maintenance in an effective marurer.

Kenya Roads Board by virtue of its mandate conducts periodic reviews,of the

clasiification system in consultation with road authorities and other stakeholders on

behalf of the Ministry. The reviews ensure that the classification system is aligned

with the country's needs for mobility, access, and safety.
xxt
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During the FY 2022/ 2023, the Board held 3No. Stakeholder workshops on the
updated Road Register with one exclusively held with the County Executive
Cornmittee Members (Roads) Forum at COC offices. The comments from the
stakeholders were addressed and the updated register submitted to the CS Roads
and Transport for approval and onward submission to Inter-Governmental Relations
Technical Committee for gazettement.

Countrywide Roads Inventory and Condition Survey (RICS)

Road Inventory and Conditions Survey (RICS) is the process by which a country
acquires data on the road assets to enable them to make evidence-based decisions on
how to invest in physicaI inlrastructure. There have been three cycles of countrywide
RICS (2004, 2009 and 2018) in which inventory and conditions were updated while
new roads were mapped.

During FY 2022/ 2023, the Board undertook countrywide RICS data collection that
commenced in December 2021,. The data collection was concluded during the year
and the remaining activities include harmonization of the five zonal datasets into one
dataset and linear referencing with the final RICS reports and datasets by November
2023.

I am happy to note that the survey results show an improvement in the condition of
the network by an average of 10% which shows that the huge investments made in
the road sub sector over the last few years have borne fruit. There is increasing need
therefore to invest in preserving the asset to maintain and improve the conditions
further.

The Annual Public Roads Programme

The Board has a mandate to oversee the road network in Kenya and to coordinate
the maintenance, rehabilitation and development funded by RMLF and to advise the
Minister on all matters related thereto.

Section 19 (4) of the KRB Act requires KRB to review, individually, the Arurual Road
Works Programmes (ARWPs) submitted by Road Agencies and consolidate these
ARWPs into an Annual Public Roads Programme (APRP). During the year, the Board
allocated and released funds in accordance with the Annual Public Roads
Programme (APRP).

The approved APRP FY 2022/ 2023 was fully funded and the APRP FY 2023 / 2024
has been compiled. The APRP for FY 2023 /2024 has been published and publicized.

In addition to funding the APRP, Technical, Performance and Financial inspections
forF\ 2022/'23 are planned to be conducted from the first quarter of FY 2023 / 2024.

\\II



Section 19 (4) of the KRB Act requires the Board to review the annual road

p.ogru.r.,", submitted by each of ihe load agencies and consolidate the annual

ioui, p.ogru*rne into theAnnual Public Roads Programme (APRP) which shall: -

(a) Specify the amount allocated for the maintenance, rehabilitation' and

development of each class of roads;

(b) Match the cost of implementing the annual roads programme with revenues

collected or estimated to be collected by the and within the Fund; and

(c) Identify roads requiring maintenance, rehabilitation, or development in order' 
of prioilty, considering social and economic requirements of the country or

any part thereof in which roads are located'

Further, section (5) of the Act requires the Board to submit the APRP to the Cabinet

secretaries for Roads and Financi for approval. The approved APRP forms the basis

for funds allocation and auditing of works by the Board and may not be varied by

any road agency without the prior written approval by the Board'

Automation for Efficiency

Automation is key to enhanced efficiency and productivity and the Board has

prioritized automation of its Processes over the last 3 years.

During the Fy 2022/ 2023, the Board commenced the automation of the Annual

Public Roads Programme Management. The web-based integrated system will be

used for managerient and oversight for road work planning and reporting by the

Board. In addition, the envisioned system will assist in the monitoring and

evaluation of the implementation of APRP. The general purpose for this system is to

institute effectiveness and efficiency in the management of the APRP'

The key modules to be included in the APRP system include User module, Planning

module, Disbursement module, Monitoring & Evaluation module, and Reporting

Module. The system is expected to be ready by January 2024-

KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
F1NANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023

Cost Estimation Manual

A unified, Iogical, and traceable cost estimation system is necessary for transparenry

and accountability and to avoid poor quality works by abnormally low tenders The

Cost Estimation procedure uses a scientific Cost Estimation Method using cost break

down sheets and standardized estimation procedures.

DunngFY 2022/ 2023 the Board uPdated the Cost Estimation Manual (CEM) of 20L9,

having previously developed the manuals with |ICA support including the 2011 1st

edition and the 2017 2nd Edition.
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The CEM was disseminated to key stakeholders for immediate application in
roadworks planning and budgeting. I am happy to note that during the year, the
Board sensitized management staff of Public Procurement Regulatory Authority
(PPRA), Technical Staff of Elgeyo Marakwet County and presented to a Ugandan
delegation from the Ministry of Works & Transport and Uganda National Roads
Authority (UNRA).

To improve the applicability of the Manual, eight regional rates were developed, and
the Board has also started the automation of the CEM to make it accessible through
a web-based system which can be easily updated regularly.

Roads 2000 Shategy

The Roads 2000 Strategy is a road development and maintenance delivery
mechanism that optimizes utilization of locally available resources where technically
and economically feasible, and in a socially responsible manner.

The R2000 Strategy is anchored to the National Development Agenda and is an
enabler to accelerate the achievement of Kenya's Vision 2030. The strategy
contributes to the achievement of regional and global goals such as the African
Union's Agenda 2063 and United Nations' Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)
respectively.

During FY 2022/ 2023, the Board conducted an end-term evaluation of the 3rd

Strategic Plan which showed that the third R2000 Strategy aimed to maximize the
efficient utilization of local resources in road works programs to stimulate socio-
economic and sustainable development. This was to be achieved through creating
employment opportunities and enhancing capacity building in the road sector.
During implementation of the Strategy, the strategic goals and corresponding
objectives were achieved. Quantitatively, the third R2000 strategy developed and
maintained a total of 91,483 km of roads which was 746.1,% targel achievement. The
Strategy created employment equivalent to 43.2-rnillion-person days which
translates to 172,960 full time jobs (71% of target) with 30% being women. The wages
paid were Ksh. 39.27 billion representing 78.4% of the R2000 budget.

Further, the Board developed the 4th Roads 2000 Strategic Plan (2073-2027) through
an all-inclusive stakeholder consultative process and comprehensive analysis of both
the internal and extemal environments in which the Strategy previously operated.
The monitoring and evaluation framework therein recommends a baseline survey,
mid-term review and an end term review as part of the monitoring mechanisms that
the Board would employ to ensure its success as the coordinating secretariat for the
Stlategy.

Perf ormance Contracting

Kenya Roads Board signed the F\ 2022/ 2023 performance contract with the
Government of Kenya through the Ministry of Roads & Transport.
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The Key Result Areas requiring strategic focus of the Board are management of the

Road Fund, oversight, and coor?ination of the Road Network; and strengthening the

institutional capaci tY.

Appreclatlon

I would like to thank the Board of Directors, Management and Staff of Kenya Roads

Board for their continued support and dedlcation, without which our ambitious

obiectives could not have b€en achieved. I would also wish to extend our Sratitude
to 

'the 
Government of Kenya, the Ministry of Transport, Infrastructure, Housing and

Urban Development & Pu-blic Works, the National Treasury and Road Agencies for
their co-operation and suppott.

Finally, I would like to thank all taxpayers and stakeholders, and assure them of'our
strong commitment to deliv$ outstanding value to Kenyans as a whole.

KENYA ROAD6 BOARD FUND .

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDEP 36TH IUNE 2023

+ I a. I o.t
RM .MB DATE
DIRECTOR L

xxv



KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023

STATEMENT OFPERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED
OBIECTIVES FOR FY 20242023

Skateeic Plan 2018-22 Performance Revien

The Board conducted a performance review on the implementation of SEategic Plan
2078-2022 and identified its key achievements, challenges, lessotls leamt and
emerging issues. These four aspects have formed the basis of the development of
Strategic Plan 2023 - 2028 and are enumerated below.

Kev Achievements

The Board recorded achievements in each of the three key result areas pursued
during the implementation phase of the Skategic Plan 2018-2022 of which key
among them include:

KRA 1: Management of the Road Fund

Sfiategic Obiecfiae 7: To mobilize resources to meet the current and futare ilemanil
for roail naintmaace, rehabilitation, anil ileoelopmmt,

ll

llt

lv.

Through an amendment of KRB Act. 1999, the Kenya Roads Board Fund (KRBF)
transitioned from the 2nd generation fund to 3.d generation fund;
The KRB Fund has grown from the five-year target of Kes. 381.14 billion to
realized collections amounting to Kes. 390 billion;
A survey was conducted on Road User Charges and its recommendations
approved and adopted by the Board. In addition, a Road Maintenance Funding
Poliry was prepared;
A collaboration framework enlisting support from development partners for the
Board programmes was developed with four (4No.) programmes implemented.

ll

Strategic Objectioe 2: To mntre prudent anil sustainable utilization of the Funil

Five (5No.) annual KRB and KRBF budgets were prepared and submitted to the
National Treasury in accordance with Public Financial Management (PFM) Act
2012)
The Board obtained 5No. unqualified audit reports from the Office of the Auditor
General on both its operations and on fund financial statements.

KRA 2: Oversieht and coordination of the road network

Sfiategic Objecfiae 3: To facilitate maintmance of 767,457km National Truak and
County Roails

i. In the S-year period, a cumulative of 168,783Kms of national trunk roads and
35,000Kms of county roads (from FY 201.8 /79 to F\ 2020 / 27) werc maintained;

x x\,1



KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH iUNE 2023

ii.RoadSectorlnvestmentProgrammell(RSIPII)coveringtheperiod20TS-2022;
was developed, upprot "J by CS National Treasury' published' and

disseminated to keY stakeholders;
iii. Five (SNo.) RSIP ll monitoring and evaluation reports prepared' and an,end term

RSIP II Evaluation carried oul at the end of FY 2021' /22 and report published;

iv. The Board developed Road Electronic Planning and Reporting System (RePARS)

for use by Kenya Wildlife Service (KWS);

v. A Road inveniory & Condition Survey (RICS) study was completed in 2018'

roads database updated, and resulti disseminated to stakeholders' Road

agencies and county staff were trained on RICS;

vi. Ii enhancing coordination, monitoring and evaluation of APRP' 5No'

Consultative / engagement meetings on work planning and reporting held with
the Road Agencies (RAs) and County Govemments (CGs);

vii. Five (5No.) APRPs were prepared and approved by CS MoTIHUD & PW and

their implementation monitored by the Board.

strategic objectiae 4: To prunote cost effectiaeness in ileliztery of roail zuorks

i. The Board conducted technical, financial and performance audits on semi-

annual basis to enhance value for money in the application of the Fund. Five

(5No.) annual reports were submitted to the PS - Inlrastructure with strategic

and compliance issues noted and giving advice on the required actions to

address the noted concerns;
ii. on county Governments, the Board conducted monitoring and evaluation on

application of RMLF conditional grant to the county governments in FYs

Zili}/tg, 2O1g /ZO and 2O2O /21 and reports disseminated to the Counties with
recommended actions and submitted to MoTIHUD & PW and National

Treasury;
iii. A baseline study and an imPact assessment on RMLF Programmes were

conducted during the period from which a value for money report was prepared

which established that roads in fair condition reduced from 3Tpercent to 22

percent while those in poor condition reduced from 23 Percent to 18 percent

between FY 2018 /79 ro FY 2020 /21-;
iv. The Board conducted 5 No. performance assessments of Road agencies through

a Road Maintenance Accountability Index tool;
v. On institutionalizing R2000 strategy and Performance Based Contracting (PBC),

35,562 Kms of roads were partially implemented using R2000 programme while

37,245 Krlts were implemented under PBC by road agencies against a target of

12,500 Kms and 14,593 Kms respectively;
vi. Collaborative framework was established between the Board and National

Transport and Safety Authority (ltffsA) in support of road safety initiatives;

vii. Engaged in 3No. Research programme initiatives with JKUAT, University of

Nairobi and County Government of Machakos.
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I

llr

lv

vl.

ll.

lu.

lv.

KRA 3: Institutional Capacity

Strategic Objectiae 5: To promote gooil corporate goverfiaflce

On Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), the Board donated 1No. ambulance,
trained 3,000 boda boda operators on road safety, planted 10,000 trees to promote
climate change agenda and financed maintenance of access road to a high school;
ln enhancing effectiveness of the Board of Directors, Mwongozo code of
govemance was implemented;
In safeguarding Board Assets, an annual review of risk framework was
conducted over the five-year period. In addition, Business Continuity Plan (BCP)
and disaster recovery plan was reviewed and implemented;
In strengthening the Board's Systems and procedures, QMS ISO 9001:2015 was
maintained;
Engaged Graduate Engineers Intemship programme;
In enhancing effective supply chain management practices, the Board approved
and implemented 5No. procurement and disposal plans in compliance with
Public Procurement and Disposal Act (PPDA) 2015 and regulations 2020. ln
addition, the board conducted 5No. trainings on YWPD category of supplies as
had been targeted.

Strategic Objectiae 5: To attract, deaelop and rctain Human Capital

The Board reviewed and obtained approval for implementation of the Human
Resource Instruments;
In achieving the decentralization of the Board's Services, nine (9 No.) KRB
decentralized regional office locations were identified of which 4No. Regional
Offices of Garissa, Nyeri, Nakuru and Kisumu were operationalized during the
implementation phase of Strategic Plan 2078 - 2022;
On institutionalize performance-based management, the Board achieved an
exceptionally superior performance rating over the five-year period;
Enhanced staff capacity through training based on their training needs
assessment;
In raising and sustaining employee satisfaction, 2No employee satisfaction
surveys were conducted with a reported satisfaction index of 80.5 percent.

Strategic Objectiae No. 7: To institutionalize use of ICT in KRB operations

On establishing and maintaining Board's integrated Management Information
System, a Microsoft Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) was implemented.
Currently, the Board processes are 80 percent automated through the
implementation of ERP. In addition, the implementation of Microsoft 365 has led
to more efficient collaboration among users using Microsoft Teams, SharePoint,
and OneDrive modules, use by KWS.
In promoting the Automation and security of the Board Operations, remote
secure working from out of office enabled and facilitated virtual Board
operations during COVID-19 pandemic period, established WAN link to
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regional offices, facilitated the development of Road electronic Planning and

Reporting (RePARS).

Section 81 Subsection 2 (Q of the Public Finance Management Act' 2012 requires the

accounting officer to include in the financial statements, a statement of the national

governme-nt entity's performance against Predetermined obiectives'

Strate cic Obiectives and Stra tesies

Enhance and Safeguard Road

Maintenance
Source additional Funds for roa

rehabilitation, maintenance, and
d

develo ent
Enlist support from DeveloPment
Partners for Board arures

To mobilize resources
to meet the cuEent
and future demand for
road maintenance,
rehabilitation, and
development

Enhance financial management oI
the Fund

To ensure prudent and
sustainable utilization
of the Fund

Management
of the Road
Fund

1

lnstitutionalize Planning and
programming for the road
maintenance, rehabilitation, and
develo ment
Establish a county government

t frameworken
Promote road safetY within the

road subsector

To facilitate planning
and programming for
maintenance,
rehabilitation, and
development of the
Road Network

Undertake technical and
performance audits and fund
inspections of road maintenance

ro ammes funded the Fund
Enhance value for moneY in the

lication of the Funda

To promote optimal
efficiency and cost
effectiveness in
delivery of road works

Promote research in the road
subsector
Promote and supPort use, review,
and update of the standards in the

road subsector

Promote policy reviews and
take in the road subsectoru

Provide advisory
services to the
Government on
matters related to the
road subsector

2 Oversight
and
coordination
of the
road
network

Enhance use of business

information systems in the Board
ratlonso

To promote
operational eff iciencY
and overnance

3

Ca act

Strengthen
Institutional
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rcesmana ement pract
Enhance effective supply chain

Enhance corporate image and
customer service
Ensure compliance with laws and
policies
Enhance Effectiveness of the Board
of Dhectors
Ensure optimal human resource
Enhance knowledge management
and infrastructure

To attract, develop
and retain human
capital

Raise and sustain employee
satisfaction

Performance Revien, for F\ 2022-2023 - Fundins

a. Road Maintenance Funding

The RMLF funding allocation has gradually increased from Kshs.69 billion in FY
201,8/ 2019 to the current allocation of Kshs. 82.42 billion over the last 5 years as
shown in the table below:

The APRP 2022-23 has taken into consideration priorities as set out in the Road Sector
Investment Plan (2078-2022), KRB-F works planning guidelines and is aligned to the
Government Medium Term Expenditure Framework. The key considerations
include: -

(0 Road Asset Preservation - routine and periodic maintenance will be applied
to the roads in good and fair condition as far as possible to preserve the existing
road assets.

(ii) Road Asset Restoration - some critical roads which are in poor condition
have been included in FY 2021, / 22 APRP to receive full scale/partial rehabilitation
or reconstruction. In addition, spot improvement will be undertaken on selected
roads which are in poor condition or those that have failed to keep these roads in a
motorable condition until major interventiors are undertaken.

\\\

ROAD MAINTENANCE FUNDING
RECEIPTS FY 2018n9 F\ 2019120 Fv 2020/27 F\ 202V22 w 2022t23
Fuel levy 68,4146,000,000 71.,872,500,000 75,709,000,000 78,351,000,00 81,882,000
Transit
Tolls

550,000,000 660,000,000 550,000,000 539,000,000 539,000,000

Total
RMLF

58,990000,000 72,532,300,000 75,?59,000,000 7&890,000,000 82,421,O00,000
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(ii0 Road Improvement and Development - to resPond to traffic growth' the

capacity of roads will be improved through upgrading, widening' iunction
improvement and new construction. Othir improvements include provision of

non-motorized transPort facilities such as cycle tracks, footpaths, and construction

of pedestrian crossings. A maximum of 10% KRB-F will be applied for road

improvement and develoPment.

(iu) Multi-year road Proiects - All ongoing multi-year proiects are included and

are adequately resourced.

(v) Support Big 4 Agenda Initiatives by prioritizing maintenance of feeder road

network and criti;l links for County & KeRRA road networks to provide access

roads to hospitals, markets, trunk roads, affordable housing, and manufacturing

areas especially Nairobi and Mombasa.

(ui) Support Govemment Post Covid-19 Economic Recovery Strategf tne !914
issued guidelines to promote local resource-based approaches set out under R2000

strategy and Kazi Mtaani program.

(vii) Emergencies - Funds have been set aside for emergencies resulting from

climate change, natural and man-made factors.

(viii) The APRP was also subjected to ioint review with the parent Ministry'

(ir) other considerations - the Board has ensured that there is no duplication of

road programs across the road agencies and the maintenance interventions are

guided by road inventory & condition surveys undertaken by road agencies'

2. Annual Public Roads Programme (APRP) F\ 2022-2023

Kenya has a total network estimated at246,757 Km, of which 162,055 Km is classified

network. Accorcling to the RICS data of 2018, about 100,000 Km of the network is

maintainable. The National Trunk Road network currently stands at t14,021 Km and

the rest are County roads.

InFY 2022/23, the road agencies have plarured to maintain a total of 50,978 kms of

road network tfuough various intervention measures as follows:

Routine Maintenance -This is a regular planned maintenance of roads that involves

cleaning of drainage systems, light grading of gravel and earth roads, filling of

potholei, patching and repair of edges of a Pavement for paved roads, repair of
shoulders and side slopes, and vegetation control on the road reserves.

Periodic Maintenance - This is maintenance carried out in periodic intervals of years

to preserve the pavement structure of a road. It involves activities aimed at
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strengthening the road surface covering long stretches. The activities range from re-
gravelling a gravel road to overlay of tarmac (AC) or surface dressing of a paved
road.

Spot improvement - Spot improvement is a measure undertaken to restore a failed
section of a road. Tfus approach tries to keep roads in poor condition motorable by
improving soft spots on gravel or earth roads and reconstructing failed sections of
paved roads as they await periodic maintenance or rehabilitation. Spot improvement
may also be carried out on specific failed sections of roads in good and fair condition
or re{onstruction of collapsed culverts and short bridges.

PBC - Performance Based Contracting (PBC) is an approach in road maintenance
where most of the risks in road maintenance contracts are transferred to the
contractor. In this approach the Road Agency sets out service levels (standards) of a
road required to be achieved by the contractor and makes fixed monthly or quarterly
payments to the contractor for achieving the set service levels. The contract period
varies from country to country but in Kenya a period of 3 years is currently being
used by KeNHA.

Upgrading - This involves changing or improving the carriageway of a road from
one surface type to a higher standard surface type. For instance, a road may be
upgraded from earth to gravel standard or from gravel to bitumen standard (tarmac).

a APRP FY 2022-23 lludeets

The Annual Public Roads Programme (APRP) for financial year 2022-2023 was
prepared based on projected collections of the Kenya Roads Board Fund (KRB-F) as
approved by The National Treasury & Planning and in accordance with the KRB Act
as per the table below:
&MLF allocat n to Road nctes

Amount (Ksh.)
RMLF Allocation

Fy2ozzas
KeNHA (Road Classes S,A,B) 27,201.,467,224
KeNHA Transit Tolls 539,000,000
Sub-Total for KeNHA 27,740,46't,?24
KeRRA - (Road Class C) 21,767,768,980
KURA - Urban Roads (Road Classes UA,
UB&UC)

10,200,547,9s9

KWS (Roads within National Parks &
Game Reserves)

680,036,531

KRB Board/CS Allocation 6,800,365,306

Sub-Total for maintenance 67,182,s80,000
Kenya Roads Board Operations "r,648,420,000

Road Annuity Fund 13,s90,000,000

TOTAL 8242r,000.,M
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The table below is a surunary of the planned interventions nFl 2022/20?i by the

different Road Agencies from the approved budgets:

Taltle: Consolidated APRP FY 2022p023 Outputs

The national trunk road network to be covered in Fy2022/2023 APKP is a total length

of 32,224ktn. This represents 73o/o of the classified national trunk road network of

M,OZ7KIr- as per the updated road register 2021 and represents 20% of entire road

network of 152055km which includes County roads.

A nelwork of approximately 5,000 km is planned during the financial year under the

10% CS allocation budget as shown in the table above. Communication to the Road

Agencies on the prioritized roads will be done as per the Ministe/s aPProval'

KeRRA has also included in the planned network a total of 11543 Kms of County

roads in their FY 2022/23 ARPWs representing 10% of the total County Road

network. KWS has also plarured to maintain 1,425 kms of county roads and 785 kms

of unclassilied within the National parks and Game reserves.

The planned network nW 2022/23 has increased by 3% compared to the previous

Financial Year.
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3. Road Sector Investment Prograrnrne

Road Sector lnvestment Programme (RSIP) is a medium-term plan that outlines the
development and maintenance priorities for the road network including the type of
interventions and funding requirements. Section 34 (1) of the Kenya Roads Act, 2007
requires the Minister responsible for Roads in consultation with the Road Authorities
and the Kenya Roads Board to prepare a road investment programme for approval
by the Minister responsible for Finance once every five years.

In the previous year, the Board concluded RSIP II (2078-2022), and an evaluation
report showed 89% physical achievement for road works with a funding deficit of
kshs. 121 billion. Lessons learnt were documented to inform the development of the
next RSIP.

During FY 2022/2023, the Board commenced the development of RSIP ll (2023-
2027). A taskforce was appointed by the PS, infrastructure made up of
representatives from the State Departments of Infrastructure, Transport and
Treasury, Road Agencies, KNBS, KIPPRA, Council of Governors with KRB as the
secretariat. The objectives of the study are to:

i) Collect and Collate Road Network Data necessary for the development of RSIP III
ii) To improve the configuration and calibration parameters of HDM4 Kenyan

Workspace. The update of configuration and calibration parameters will be done
for the latest version of HDM4.

iii) To develop a detailed short term (5-year) 2023-2027 and medium term (10-year)
2023-2032 Road Sector Investment Programme for National Trunk Roads and
County specific investment plans anchored on long term sector plans, county
inte$ated development plans and national priorities.

iv) To establish the road asset value

The RSIP will cover prioritized development and maintenance interventions for the
entire road network over the 5-year and 10-year plan periods (Routine and periodic
mailltenance, rehabilitation, reconstruction, upgading, new construction). In
additioru the RSIP will consider all funding sources available for road maintenance
and development (exchequer, development partner funds, road maintenance levy
fund and county budgets for roads).

Some of the road network data that is to be collected and collated include RICS,

Traffic data, Vehicle Operating Costs, Accident Data, budgets, and asset valuation
input data.

As of 30th June 2023, the Consultant had completed the traffic data collection and
prepared a traffic survey report. An interim rePort is due in Jdy 2023 covering all
the network data collected from primary sources and collated from secondary
sources. The RSIP III is expected to be developed by 30th June 2024 for immediate
implementation.
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4. Coun ide Road Inventorv and Conditions Survev (RICS}

The Board commenced the exercise to conduct a countrywide Road Inventory and

Condition Survey (RICS) on the country's classified network, new roads with a

reserve of 9m and above, all major structures and non-motorized transport (NMT)

on all National Trunk Roads (NTR). This is the 4tr. cycle of countrywide RICS having

previously undertaken the exercise in 2004, 2009 and 2018'

As part of the exercise, the Board undertook countrywide RICS data collection that

commenced in December 2027. The data collection was concluded during the year

and the remaining activities include harmonization of the five zonal datasets into one

dataset and lineai referencing with the final RICS reports and datasets by November

2023. The survey results show an improvement in the condition of the network by an

average of L0% which shows that the huge investments made in the road sub sector

over the last few years have bome fruit.

5- Promotine Research throush Collaborations

The Board is mandated to oversee and coordinate road maintenance, development

and rehabilitation funded by the Fund and advise the Cabinet Secretary responsible

for roads on all matters related thereto. To effectively advise the Cabinet Secretary

on the impact of road development programmes there is need for such advice to be

continuously informed by research.

over the past 5 years, the Board has supported various research initiatives as follows:

1) 2nd Intemational Conference on TransPort and Road Research 2018- The

conference was organized iointly between KRB and Materials Testing & Research

Division (MTRD) with an aim of enhancing knowledge sharing, collaborations

and partnerships between Sovernment, Private sector, and the academia for
uptake of new research and technologies.
Support of fabrication of pilot Emulsion Treated Base (ETB) Mixer equiPment

through collaboration with Jomo Kenyatta University of Science and Technology

$KUAT) and MTRD
Research on Lkm trial cobblestone section in Machakos County through
collaboration with Machakos County and Kenya I-rnstitute of Highways and

Building Technotogy (KIHBT)

a. Investigate the state and ProPerties of the underlying volcanic soils that caused

fissures and cracks along the Mai Mahiu - Narok road;
b. Investigate the contribution of long rains towards the occurrence fissures and

cracks witnessed along the Mai Mahiu - Narok road;

,\,^,\V

2)

3)

During FY 2022/2023, the Board funded the Research titled " Causes of Fissures on

Roads in Kenya: Case Study of Maai-Maliu-Narok Road" which had sought to undertake
the following:
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c. Develop remedial measures. that can be taken during design and construction of
structures within the area traversed by the Mai Mahiu - Narok road.

The Research commenced in mid-May 2022 and the research team conducted
reconnaissance visit, detailed geotechnical investigations of the site area and data
analysis.

a. Maai-Mahiu -Narok Road research fi rtdinqs and recommendations

The key findings included the following:

(D The formation of fissures that cause road cuts are a fundamental geotechnical
problem emanating from a combinatiorr of poor geotechnical character of the
resident soils, geology, topography, hydrotogy, and hydrogeology of the area.

(i0 The soils in this area are collapsible soils capable of huge settlements as
determined from the consolidation tests. During heavy rains, the high
permeability of the soils allows oversahrration of the unconsolidated sediments.

(iiD A sudden reduction of shear strength and the extra loading due to saturation
leads to the collapse of the soils and hence formation of sinkholes and sub-
terranean flow. The result is a formation of trenches/ gullies that may extend for
hundreds of meters as several sinkholes merge linearly. Most of these gullies
have been observed to grow deeper and wider with every rainy season. It is also
presumed that pre-existing drainage paths offer paths of least resistance to
overflowing flash floods.

(iv) Upon contact with the road. the road acts as a barrier to the flash floods. The
result is formation of water ponds around and along the road. This gives time
for the water to infiltrate and saturate the sands which leads to subsurface flow
within the volcanic sediments that underlay the road base. Oversaturation leads
to subsurface flow and hence erosion as the sands lose their shear resistance and
ultimately collapse. The road eventually caves into the depressions created by
the subterranean erosion.

From these findings, the following recommendations were drawn to address the
challenges observed:

1) Where the road alignment traverses areas with collapsible soilt when deemed
possible, the initial option should be to realign the road to areas with soils that
can hold the road pavement without developing the fissures that will undermine
it.

2) On areas where collapsible soils are found, prior to construction of structures
and road pavements, it is vital that extensive investigations on geology and
geotechnical investigations be done to identily the affected areas of the road
alignment. Sufficient budget needs to be allocated for these detailed
investigations.

3) In such areas where collapsible sections are identified on the road alignment, use
of rigid pavements is recommended. Concrete pavements can 'bridge' weak

xxxVl
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5. Iob Creation throueh Roads 2000 Strategv

End Term Evaluation of 3'd R2000 Strates ic Plan (2018-2023

areas in the supporting layer, through'beam action,' depending on the pavement

type and slaU ste' fne ri6a pavement will allow. placement on relatively weak

supporting layers, proviied ihut th" ,"ppotting layer cannot be eroded by the

"o-bitt"d "tf""ts 
of water and the pumping action caused by wheel loads'

4) It is recommended that where a rigid pavement is--provided' series of cross

drainage structures be Provided to ensure water runoff crosses the Pavement and

pr"rr".,i tril water blo;ked by the road. This will reduce the infiltration and

saturationofthesoilsthathasbeenfoundtocausesubsurfaceflowand
subsequent erosion.

5) For st'ructures such as bridges to be constructed on areas exhibiting the

collapsible soils, use of piles is recomrnended. The design of pile foundations in

these soils should be based on saturated soil mechanics assuming drained

conditions ignoring the influence of unsaturated conditions'

6) It is recorirnendld for further investigations a study on load trarsfer

mechanisms of piles and rigid pavements in unsaturated soils with noticeable

volume deformations (i.e., &pansive soil and collapsible soil), as inlluenced by

the water content or suction changes.

The study further recommended a trial section to test the recommendation of a rigid

puu".r,"* in areas of collapsible soils. The Board will explore opportunities of

partnering with one of the road agencies as a downstream study of this research in a

trial section with performance monitoring thereafter.

The Roads 2000 strategy is a road development and maintenance delivery

mechanism that optimizei utilization of locally available resources where technically

and economically feasible, and in a socially responsible manner' The Roads 2000

Strategy was deiived from the vision of imPlementing the approach throughout

Kenya-ty the year 2000. However, over the years "Roads 2000" has become a generic

narne signifying Local Resource Based Approach (LRBA) for delivery of road assets.

The R2000 Strategy is anchored to the National Development Agenda and is an

enabler to acceleiate the achievement of Kenya's Vision 2030' The skategy

contributes to the achievement of regional and global goals such as the African

Union's Agenda 2063 and United Nations' Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)

resPectively.

During FY 2022/ 2023, the Board conducted an end term evaluation of the 3'a

Stratetc plan and proceeded to develop the 4s Roads 2000 Strategic Plan as detailed

below:

a

The Funding sources for the implementation of the 3.d R2000 strategic Plan included:

X XX \,'I I
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i. Road Maintenance Lerry Fund (RMLF) through KRB.
ii. Development partners including AfD, EU and JICA.
iii. Other sources including National Development Budget Allocations and equitable

share to County Govemments.

Physical Achievements

Table 1: Ph ical achiattement Road A

Pr srcAl(n0

KeNHA, KeRRA and KURA achieved more than physical targets due to adoption of
Performance based contracts (PBC) and inclusion of Kazi Mtaani projects that were
introduced to cushion the disadvantaged citizens against economic effects of Covid
19 pandemic. The Kazi Mtaani projects were following the Covemment's initiative
on Post-Covid Economic Stimulus.

Employment Created

Table 3 below gives a summary of the employment created under the Third R2000
Strategic Plan and table 4 gives the employment breakdown by gender.

Table 3: E rcnt created undar tlrc Third R2000 Stra ic PIan
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Table 4: E t breakdown b ender

Wages Paid

Table 2: Wages paid under tlrc Thid R2000 Strategic Plan

XOAD

AGtnl
ELDGTT(tTSIIU

The proportion of women employed under the R2000 prograrn was 30%' KeRRI{'

KURA and KWS need to increase the number of women employed to achieve the

30% recommended by the government.

In the Third R2000 strategic P1an, the road agencies had committed Ksh. 50.1 billion

for R2000 proiects. During implementation of the strategy, wages paid amounted to

Ksh. 39.27 billioo which was 78.4% of the R2000 budget.

Programme Trend Analysis

There have been significant achievements by R2000 programmes particularly in the

areas of road network imProvement, employment creation, training and creating

economic and social opportunities for vulnerable groups such as women and the

youth. Since 2005, the Ri000 tt."t"gy has achieved 200,089 km of roads at a budget

of tZ2 bittio.t and created 81.2 million person-days of employment with 29% being

women. These achievements are detailed in table 5:
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Table 5: R2000 Pro ramme Acltietements

Conclusion

The third R2000 Strategy aimed to maximize the efficient utilization of local resources
in road works programs to stimulate socio-economic and sustainable development.
This was to be achieved through creating employment opportunities and enhancing
capacity building in the road sector. During implementation of the Strategy, the
strategic goals and corresponding ob.iectives were achieved. Quantitatively, the third
R2000 shategy developed and maintained a total of 91,483 km of roads which was
746.7% target achievement. The Strategy created employment equivalent to 43.2-
million-person days which translates to 772,960 full time iobs (71,/, of target) with
30% being women. The wages paid were Ksh. 39.27 billion representing 78.4% of the
R2000 budget.

b. 4th Roads 2000 Stratesic Plan

During the FY 2022/ 2023, the Board developed the 4th Strategic Plan which adopted
a sustainability approach with a focus on the impact of wages paid during
implementation of the programme. The Strategy provides an assessment of the
performance of the previous R2000 Skategic Plans and highlights their relevance,
efficiency, effectiveness, achievements, implementation gaps, opportunities, and
challenges.

The Strategic Plan was developed through an all-inclusive stakeholder consultative
process and comprehensive analysis of both the intemal and external environments
in which the Strategy previousiy operated. Arising from the above consultative
process and environmental scan, a strategic model to guide the operational
framework and the execution of the Strategy has been developed.

Monitoring, Evaluation and Reporting Framework has been developed to enable an
assessment of the relevance, efficiency and impact of the program and activities in
relation to their goals and objectives. As a good practice, a Baseline Survey at the
beginning of the 4th Strategic Plan period, Midterm Review to be conducted after

\L
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two and a half (2.5) years, and the Final Evaluation at the end of the implementation

period have been pioposed. Below is a summary of the Key Recommendations of

this 4th Strategic Plan;

(i)Agenciesshouldsetasideatleast15%oftheRMLal,locationstowardsR2000

(ii)
strategy.
Research should be enhanced, especially collaboration with research

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

departments and academia. Dissemination of completed research findings for

application should also be enhanced. There is also needed to identify and

embrace emerging technologies strategies for quick fit-in'
Implementing agencies to standardize conversion of person-days to full year

employment-eqiivalent for reporting under R2000 strategy' In this case' 
-240

p".ro.r-d"yt to form 1-year employment equivalent. Data for both person-days

and yearly employment equivilent to be separately reported, as well as each

gender.
tleed for linkage/collaboration of LB training agencies with academia for

broader acceptaice and foster Institutional and attitude changes to emerge from

the traditional conventional methods, by upscaling the KIHBT curriculum to

Universities and TVET Institutions.
Periodic Monitoring & Evaluation is a key aspect for improvement of the R2000

strategy which siakeholders can further learn and improve on The

reconiinendation is to have a Baseline Survey once the 4th Strategic Plan has been

launched as a basis for continuous monitoring, with key milestones consisting of

Mid-Term Review, and Final Impact Assessment. This will inJorm the

stakeholders the level of impact the Kshs. 315.02 billion invested in
implementation of over 142,000 km of road network will have in a span of five

years, measured under various performance indicators.

7 Towards Cost Effectiveness throueh Standardized Cost Estimation

Cost reduction in roadworks has been identified as one of the measures that the

Government will pursue to ensure there is cost-effectiveness and responsible use of

public resources in services delivery. The purpose of the cost Estimation Manual

|CEUI ir to provide guidance to Road Agencies and other sector players for
consistent development of project cost estimates

A unified, logical, and traceable cost estimation system is necessary for
transparency and accountability and to avoid poor quality work by abnormally low
tenders. The Cost Estimation procedure uses a scientific Cost Estimation Method

using cost break down sheets and standardized estimation procedures. The cost

estimation includes survey methods required for revisions and updates of various
parameters such as Standard Resource Usage per Unit Quantih/ (SRUQ),

Productivity Ratio (P/R) and imPortant cost items such as unit rates' Productivity
rates of the work items are determined through a survey that sets to determine the

output rates of machine based and labour-based works'

xt I
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Kenya Roads Board was appointed as the administrator for the cost estimation
system and charged with the responsibility of updating the system every two years.

DuringF\ 2022/ 2023 the Board updated the Cost Estimation Manual of 2019, having
previously developed the manuals with JICA support including the 2011 l edition
and the 2017 2"d Edition. The development process involved the following key
activities:

(i) Market survey of unit costs of inputs used in roadworks- A market survey
was conducted across 22 towns covering eight regions of Nairobi/Central;
Coast; South Rif! Nyanza/Western; North Rift; Lower Eastern; Upper Eastern
and Northeastern.

(ii) Collation of road maintenance works cost of ongoing and completed
maintenance proiects from sampled Road Agencies regions

(iii) Collate official unit prices for labour (Ministry of Labour), machinery (MTD)
and materials (KNBS)

(iv) Validation of productivity survey in Cost Estimation Manual 2019
(") Stakeholderengagement

The Cost Estimation Manual update was completed in November 20?2 and
disseminated to all the key stakeholders for immediate application. The Manual has
8 dilferent regional rates which is different from the previous editions that oniy
considered 2 rates (cities and other towns). This is intended to enhance its
applicability throughout different regions in the country.

As of 30th June 2022/2023, the Board had sensitized, upon request, the management
team of Public Procurement Regulatory Authority (PPRA) in March 2023, Technical
staff from Elgeyo Marakwet County in May and a delegation from Uganda (Works
and Transport Ministry and Uganda National Roads Authority) on the updated CEM
2022/2023.

lJ. Autonlation for efficiency

The Board has increasingly embraced ICT in delivery of its services for enhanced
efficiency:

Annual Public Roads Proqranrnre {APRP) Svstema

During the FY 2022/ 2023, the Board commenced the automation of the Annual
Public Roads Programme (APRP) Management System. The web-based integrated
system will be used for management and oversight for road work planning and
reporting by KRB. In addition, the envisioned system will assist in the monitoring
and evaluation of the implementation of APRP. The general purpose for this system
is to institute effectiveness and efficiency in the management of the APRP.

\t,II
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imation Manual Svstem

The system development commenced in July 2023 and is set to run for 18 months to

lanuiry zoz+. As oi 30th ;une 2023, a porotype for the system had been presented to

i4anag"*ent and comments incorporated in the development Process The 
-key

modies to be included in the APRPSystem include User module, Planning module,

Disbursement module, Monitoring & Evaluation module, and Reporting Module'

b. Cost Est

The main challenge experienced in the implementation/use of the CEM is the

bulkiness of the manuil, and the use of the standalone excel spreadsheets for

computation of unit rates, therefore there was a need for KRB to develop a web-based

cost estimation system to improve the process of cost estimation through automation.

The web-based system will be used for Market survey data collection and update,

Road Works cosi analysis, rates development and Road works Cost estimation by

Road Agencies, contractors, Kenya Roads Board, Ministry of Roads and County

Governments.

During the F\ 2022/2023 a Prototype for the CEM system was prepared' The final

system is expected to be in place by the end of 1't Quarter, FY 2022/2023

As part of oversight and coordination of the road network, the Board conducts

periodic inspections of ongoing road maintenance works throughout the country to
issure the Board of economy, efficiency, and effectiveness in delivery of roadworks

funded by the Kenya Roads Board Fund.

During the W 2022/ 2023, the Executive Committee conducted field inspections in
UpperEastern counties of Meru, Tharaka, Nithi and Embu while a second inspection
visit covered South Rift, Nyanza, and Westem regions.

The implemented projects are further exPected to oPen these agriculturally rich

regions. This follows the financing the Board of key projects including Kathita bridge
in Tharaka Nithi, Kangaru-Kairuri-Kiriari, Ntugi-Machaka-Mujuiune Road roads in
Meru County, Mutunduri-Manyatta-Kianjokoma in Embu, Mercy Nieri-mangi-
Rongai in Nakuru and other projects in Busia and Kisumu. The projects were at

various levels of completion and the team held consultations with the Road Agencies

with a view of expediting completion of works and upholding quality of works.

9. Monitorin s for Value f or Monev in Roadworks

10. Development of KRB 4th KRB Stratesic Plan

The Kenya Roads Board Skategic Plan 2023-2027 is the 5th since the establishment

of the Board in 1999 and anchors its foundation on the achievements, challenges and
lessons learnt by the Board from the implementation of its 4th Strategic Plan (SP

2078-2022). The Board's Strategic Plan 2023-2027 details the strategic intents and
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obiectives that will guide the Board in execution of its mandate from FY 2023 / 24 to
Fv 2027/28.

During the implementation phase of the 4th Strategic Plan 2078-2022, the Board, in
collaboration with Ministry of Roads and Transport, put in place suitable measures
aimed at enhancing efficiency, sustainability and optimal management of the Fund.
The Government in 2019, accorded the Board more responsibilities in the roads sub-
sector through the amendment of Kenya Road Board Act of 1999. The amendment
transformed the Board to a 3rd Generation Road fund with powers to borrow.

In addition, the Kenya Roads Board (General) Rules, 2022 were gazetted through
legal notice No. 141 to effectively operationalize Kenya Road Board Act. The Board
restructured its operational processes and commenced devolving its services
through creation of 9 No. Regional Offices, four of which are fully operational. The
other five regional offices will be operationalized during the implementation phase
of the Board's 5th Strategic Plan 2023-2027.

Starting W 20n/24, the Govemment will commence implementation of its Fourth
Medium Term Plan (lvITP IV) for the period 2023-2027. Kenya Roads Board Strategic
PIan 202j-27 factors in the aspects MTP fV, national and regional economic
development aspirations.

The Board's Strategic Plan 2023-2027 has been developed in line with the National
Treasury guidelines for preparation of the Fifth-Ceneration Skategic Plans. In
addition, it has been developed tfuough an engagement process of Board's internal
and external stakeholders including being subjected to a validation process.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANC E STATEMENT

1. Introduction

2. The Board

Board Size and Composition

The Board of Directors recognizes the imPortance of applying the highest standards

oi fo.por"r" gouemance as ;key contribuior to its long-term success' long term value

and prosperity.

This enables effective and efficient decision rnaking and gives a structural aid for the

Directors to discharge their duty to Promote the success of KRB while considering

the interest of stakeholders.

Effective govemance is achieved through a combination of strong process and

structuresJunderpinned by the right values and culture. The principles of corporate

governance are contained in the Mwongozo Code of Conduct & Ethics

The size, composition and aPPointments of the Members of the Board are prescribed

in the Kenya Roads Board Act. Kenya Roads Board comprises of thirteen (13)

independent non-executive board of directors of which eight (8) are from the private

sector institutions and five (5) members rePresenting the public sector. Each private

member serves for a maximum of two terms of three (3) years each'

The Chairman of the Board is appointed by the President from among the eiSht

members from the private sector. Names of all Board members and changes thereto

are published in the Kenya Gazette.

The public sector rePresentatives are the principal secretaries or designated

alternates not below ttre level of deputy secretary from the ministries responsible for

matters relating to roads, finance, local authorities, regional co-operation, kansPort

& communications.

The representatives from the private sector are aPpointed by the Minister responsible

for roads from among the three persons nominated by each organization specified in
the First Schedule to the Kenya Roads Board Act.

The Board is well composed in terms of range and diversity of skills, knowledge, age,

and experience in various sectors which makes it effective and provides an

uppropiiut" bulunce for the oversight of the Board's mandate. On gender, the Board

has three (3) women out of eight (8) members from the private sector'

The Director General's position is filled tfuough public advertisement. The Director

General is appointed by the Board in consultation with the Minister.
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The Director General is an ex-official member of the Board but has no voting right at
any meeting of the Board and is the secretary to the Board.

Indeoendence and Se paration of Roles & Responsi bilities

The roles and responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board, the Director General and
non-Director General s' remain distinct and separate which ensures a balance of
power of authority and provides for checks and balances such that no one individual
has unfettered powers of decision making. Their roles have been documented and
are expected to be independent and free from conllict upon appointment.

The Chairman provides overall leadership to the Board without limiting the
principles of collective responsibility for Board's decisions. The Chairman builds an
effective board and sets the board agenda in consultation with the Secretary/ Director
General and ensures effective communication to stakeholders.

The Director General is responsible to the Board and takes the overall responsibility
for the management of the Kenya Roads Board Fund and takes responsibility for
effective and efficient day to day running of the affairs of the Board. The Director
General recommends the strategy to the Board and implements it and makes
operational decisions. Noting that the position also doubles as the secretary to the
Board, the Director General ensures appropriate and timely information flows within
the Board, its committees and management.

The non-executive directors are independent of management, they appoint the
Director General and establish a framework for the delegation of authority and
ensure succession planning for the Director General and senior management is in
place. Their role is to advise, constructively challenge and monitor the success the
management is delivering the agreed skategy within the risk appetite and control
framework that is set out by the Board.

Board Res po nsi b i I i ties

The Board's responsibility is to promote the long-term success of the Board. The
Board provides leadership and concentrates its efforts on the strategic and
governance issues. The Kenya Roads Board Act, the Board Charter and the
Mwongozo Code of Ethics defines the governance parameters within which the
Board exists and operates, the specific responsibilities to be discharged and powers
of the Board, its comrnittees, and directors collectively, as well as certain roles and
responsibilities incumbent upon directors as individuals.

The Board is charged with the following responsibilities: -

a) Defining the purpose of the Kenya Roads Board, that is, its strategic intent and
objectives, and its values wfuch should be clear, concise, and achievable;
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b) Strategy formulation and ensuring there are approPriate policies' systems' and

structur#to implement the strategies effectively and successfully;

c) Provide leadership within a framework of prudent and effective structures which

enable risks to be assessed;

d) Identify the opportunities as well as the principal risks in its operating

environme.tt incluiing the preparation of the risk poliry plans/risk management

policies and impleme-ntation of appropriate measures to manage such risks or

anticipated imPact on the corporate business;

e) Review on a regular basis the adequacy and integrity of the internal controls'

acquisition and div-estures, .".,ug"^"t t ittiormation systems including compliance

with applicable laws and regulations;

f) In stewardship and in discharging its obligations, the Board assumes responsibility

in the following areas:

o Retaining fult and effectioe controt ouer KRB, and monitoring management ifi

implementing Board plans and strfltegies)

oEnsuingethicalbehauiorandcompliancewithreleuantlawsandregulations,audit,
and accoltnting principles, and KRb's own gooerning documents and Code of Ethics;

and

o Defning leuels of mateiality, reseroing specifc p.ozoers to the Board' and delegating

otlmr nfitters tttith tle necissnry writien authority to ruanagenvnt and instituting-

ffictiue mechanisms that ensure Board responsibility,for nunagement perlor.mance oJ

iis functions; antong other nandates and responsibilities as stipulated in the Kenya

Roads Boartl Act.

Meetin ss Atten ded bv Board Members

Board Committees and Responsibilities

Kenya Roads Board Act provides that the Board holds meeting at least once every

quaiter. The Board therefore holds regular scheduled meetings throughout the year

and supplementary meetings are held as and when necessary' In case of non-

attendance due to other commitments, such information was communicated to the

chair prior to the date of the scheduled meetinS.

The Board delegates certain functions to well-structured committees but without

abdicating its own responsibilities. The Board has developed a committee structure

that assis6 in the execution of its duties, powers, and authorities. Each Committee is

guided by a Committee Charter/Terms of Reference, which outlines its

iesponsibiiities as mandated by the Board and is reviewed on a yearly basis The
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Committees are appropriately constituted drawing membership from amongst the
board members with appropriate skills and experience.

The chairman of the Board and external parties/advisors are required to attend the
committee meetings only by invitation.

The committees are expected to operate transparently and full disclosure to the
Board and to conduct themselves within the rules and procedures set out by the
board. Matters deliberated by the Committees are presented to the board by the
respective chairman during the next board meeting.

The Board Committees are Audit & Risk Management, Finance, Human Resources
and Management and Technical. The responsibilities and attendance of meetings
during the year is as summarized below: -

The Finance Committee assists the board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities for
funds collection and sourcing, funds allocation & disbursements, review of budgets
and APRP and the implementation reports.

Finance Committee

The responsibilities of the committee are as follows: -

1. Management of KRB Fund (Funds allocation, collections, and
disbursements)

2. Budgeting and Planning (Review of KRB Operations Budget and the APRP)
3. Identification and recommending other potential sources of Revenue
4. Recommending periodic reviews of the fuel levy
5. Recommending appropriate levels of road user charges
6. Financial Reporting
7. Compliance with Public Finance Management (PFM) Act and other related

legislation
8. Review of funds utilization and absorption

Audit & Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee assists the board in fulfilling its
oversight responsibilities for the work's programming and monitoring as well as
the advisory role to the Minister for Roads. The Audit and Risk Management
committee has authority to conduct or authorize investigations into any matters
within its scope of responsibility.

The committee has the following responsibilities: -

1. Ensures external audit recommendations are fully addressed; and
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2. Ensures that the quatity of intemal audit is of appropriate standard and that

line management has full regard to internal audit recommendations'

ln particular, the Audit and Risk Management Committee shall be responsible for

the review of the following areas: -

1. Risk Management and ComPliance

2. Internal Audit
3. Extemal Audit

Human Resources and Managelnent Committee

The Management Committee oversees strategic planning, staff matters'

performarice contracting and general management oversight'

Specifically, the committee is responsible for the following:-

(a) Setting the policies and strategic direction of the organization;

1Ui n""i"iu tft"^strategic Plan and the Business Plan for approval by the Board;

(cj Monitoring the implementation of the Strategic Plan;

ijl fvatuatioi of the performance of the organization, Director General' staff' and

departments;
(e)'Negotiating the armual performance Contract between KRB and the Ministry of

Roads;
(f) Reviewing of the organization structure of KRB;

(g) Reviewing KRB's staff terms and conditions of service;

if,j neviewin[ tfre various management policies aimed at enhancing staff

performance;

Technical Committee

The Technical committee oversees the optimal utilization of the fund by Roads

Agencies.

Specifically, the cornmittee is responsible for the following: -

a. Coordinating the optimal utilization
effectiveness in road works;

to achieve efficienry and cost

b. Monitor and evaluate by means of Technical, financial and performance

audits the delivery of road works;
c. Coordinate/Monitor implementation of road maintenance Prograrunes;
d. Implementation of the Road Sector Investment Programme;

e. Research and Development in Roads sub sector;

f. R2000 Strategy;
g. Road Maintenance Management System(RMMS); and

h. edrtit g the Cabinet Secretary on Road maintenance policies'
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3. Remuneration of the Board

The non-ex-official Board members are paid taxable sitting allowance as approved
by the Minister responsible for Roads following guidelines from the State
Corporations Advisory Committee. The Chairman is paid honoraria at a rate
approved by the Government.

Transport expenses are reimbursed on travel for Board business at the prevailing AA
rates. The members are also entitled to outpatient and inpatient medical cover and a
personal accident cover as applicable.

4. Directors Induction and Trainins

The Board develops induction and training programs designed to introduce new
directors to the operations of the Board and related governance matters.

The programs are also aimed at deepening the understanding of the changes in risks,
laws and business and political environment in which the Board operates.

5. Board Effectiveness and Evaluation

To assess and improve the capacity, functiona-[ity and effectiveness of the Board and
its committees, an annual evaluation is undertaken in accordance with the widely
accepted principles of corporate govemance.

The self-evaluation reviews the capacity, functionality, and effectiveness of its
performance in the achievement of its goals and objectives. It assesses the
performance and independence of the Board and committees jointly, individual
members of the Board and the Director General.

The Director General is assessed in his roles as the CEO and the secretary to the
Board. The Chairman's ability to add value, his performance against what is expected
of his role and function, is also assessed.

The results of the evaluation form the basis on which action/work plans for the
preceding year are formulated, assists to identify the training needs for directors and
it also forms the basis of re-appointment.

6. Conflict of Interest Code of Conduct and Ethics

The directors and employees of the Board have a fiduciary duty to act honestly and
in the best interest of the Board. Business transactions with all parties must be carried
out at arm's length and with integrity. The Board provides effective leadership based
on ethical foundation and ensures all deliberations, decisions and actions are based
on the Boards' core values underpinning good governance.
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The Board has developed a Code of Conduct and Ethics Manual whose aim is to

enhance relationship, a.,a fosi"'ittg t"urn*otk among board members and staff and

to build resPect, confider,.", u"i ?'"aiUility with it-s citizens The Code provides

guidance to its members ,"gu'aittg ethical'and behavioral considerations as they

address their duties and obtigaiionJduring their aPPointment and their term in KRB'

The Board has put various measures in place !o en:u.re that there is no conflict of

interest amongst its directors and staff' The Board has Put in place Corruption

Prevention and Coae of Co.,iuct I gtfti"t Policies that binds both the directors and

the employees.

At the beginning of the financial year, all d.il":io1t and employees signed a

declaration of interest form declaring ihat they will disclose.any interest that conllicts

or fossiUly may conllict with the interests of the Board' At the commencement ol any

business to be transacted, uU aii""tottTttaff are required to declare their interest' if

any.

AII staff and directors declared their wealth as required to the Public Service

Commission.
During the year, the directors and employees demonstrated their commitment to the

orblic"serrice through professionalism, integrity' moral and ethical requirements'

;;i; il;t,, 
"riJp"ri,i.ur "eutrality 

ttrrough compliance with relevant laws as

evident from the legal audit, intemal a'iit, andl*temal audit reports Presented to

the Board.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Board collected revenues amounting to Kshs. g6.43 billion from Fuel Lely,
Transit Tolls, Interest income, and other income compared to income of Kshs. g7.d3
in prior year. The receipts are analyzed below:

INCOME

Fuel L Recei ts

Transit Tolls
Sub-total
Interest Income
Other Income

Cha
o/o

7y"

-73%

90./.
TOTAL RECEITTS

The Board received fuel levy of Kshs 82.865 billiory compared to collections of Kshs
83.949 billion for F\ 2027 / 22 (i.e., a 1.% decrease). The demand for fuel remains
subdued due to the soaring pump prices and adverse economic conditions. Transit
Tolls increased by L3% as a reflection of higher mileage covered by foreign-registered
trucks in the country.

Interest income is mainly on account of interest earned on cash assets held by the
Board. The Board does not budget for Interest on Road Maintenance Levy.

Other income includes gains/(losses) from sale of fully depreciated assets and
unrealized gain/ (loss) on FOREX.

DISBURSEMENTS

The Board allocated funds to the road agencies as per the table below;

Agenry Total Total

2022,t23 202U2j2
KShs '000 KShs '000

National Highways Authority 27,740,461 34,085,408
Allocation by KRB/Ministry 6,800,365 8,150,728
Kenya Wildlife Service 680,037 815,073
Kenya Rural Roads Authority 21,767,1.69 19,430358
Kenya Urban Roads Authority 10,200,548 9,707,980
Other Programmes 0 9,n0,082
Road Annuity Programme 13,590,000 76,151,186
Kenya Roads Board 0 412,277
Total Funds Disbursed in the Year 80,n2,s80 97,923,032

w202yz2 Fy 2022f23
(12 Months) (12 Months) Change

(KSHS) (KsHS) (KsHS)
83 ,949 ,085,329 82,865377,878 7,083,707,5'1'r

1.,353,856,878 7533,797,788 -779,340,910
85,302,942,207 u,398,575,nA
2,730,803,666 2,038,669,607 92,'134,065

1,,292,924 123,500 1,,169,424
87 435,038,797 86,437 368,707
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wNztN22
(12 Montha)

K6HqKSHs)

57,694,770
yr6/ryw3,67,719
309"961#7527,OD

e9(2,900,000

113,090.810
360111?53,791,875
srl,s43s1,13s

ltroqrt#r,fi16,1%

(

EXPENDITURE

The Board incurred total operating expenditure amountint to Kshs. 1.5O4 billion

during the review period, accounting foi 100% of budget utilization - as summarized

in the table below.

FY
OPERATING

ilPENDITURE

Dir,ectors Costg

Staff Costs
Co6ts

Audit Fees

Co6ts
c.s.R.

ton
TOTALE)(PBNSES

1
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINAB ILITY STATEMENT

Kenya Roads Board is dedicated to integrating Environmental, Social and
Governance issues into its operations to ensure that its operations are sustainable
and that the Board's values are aligned to those of stakeholders and the communities
in which the Board serves. To equip the Board of directors with critical knowledge
on ESG concerns, and their impact on KRB's business, the Board underwent a
comprehensive ESC training as part of continuous induction.

Environmen t.rl S ust.r i rra b i l itr'

Recla inring Kenya's Forest Cover through Iaza Miti Campaisn

One of the Board's corporate social responsibitity pillars is to support initiatives
aimed at enhancing the environment and supporting social well-being of the citizens.
As part of the initiatives to take part in environmental conservatiory during the FY
2022/ 2023, the Board continued to implement targets under a Framework of
Collaboration signed with the Kenya Forest Service to rehabilitate 10 hectares of
Mathathia block in Uplands Forest. In December 2022, the staff joined members of
the Uplands Community Forest Association and KFS and planted 2,000 trees at
Matathia block. This was to increase the survival rate owing to loss of seedlings to
dry weather.

Further, His Excellency the President, Dr. William Samoei Ruto on his taking over
Bovernment set an ambitious vision for increasing Kenya's forest cover from the
current 10% to 30% by planting 15 billion trees in the next 10 years. The Board in
further support of this initiative adopted a second site comprising 10 hectares at
Nyamweru block, Uplands and 11,000 trees planted in May 2023.

The Boarcl believes in involving communities and building a sense of ownership by
the local communities for sustainable management of our resources. The Board will
continue to work with and through communities in support of the #.jazamiti
campaign.
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t

lete Pro am

The 1$ Cohort of Graduate Engineering intems comPleted their program in.April

2023. The graduate engineers*underwint a comPrehensive Graduate Engineers

i","t*mp "Progru*." "frlly 
sponsored by Kenyi Roads, Board The aim of the

;;;;;it ; d"ip fresh civil engneering fraduites with the knowledge' skills' and

;;;:;t;; t"q;rei to excel in ttie field oiengineering' The graduate engineers were

mintored and^ supervised by professional ai'td 
""p"iiettced 

engineers in KRB and

no"a- ag"r,"i", *ho shuted'their expertise and guidance to PrePare them for

registration by the Engineers Board of Kenya'
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HS

En.rpo lvering Youth in the boda boda in d ustn

-{

!{t

The boda boda industry impacts about every person in the country. However, this
sector continues to be the largest contributor to road crash fatalities and injuries. In
recognition of the economic impact of this sector to the country and the
vulnerabilities of boda boda riders, the Board sponsored training of 100 riders in
Garissa County out of which 75 completed the training and were issued with NTSA
Licenses. The Board further sponsored sensitization of 350 operators in Meru
covering riding skills, response to accident scenes and evacuation as well as traffic
regulations. A further 100 riders are undergoing training for licensing. During the
year 350 helmets and 700 reflective jackets were issued to the riders to enhance sifety.

The Board's program covers empowerment programmes such as training and
sensitization as well as post-crash care. In December 2022, the staff visited patients
in the Orthopedic wards 6A, 6B and 6C and interacted with them. The patients, most
of whom were boda boda riders, narrated about the accidents and injuries and how
they were coping with the hospitalization and treatment. The Board donated 27
wheelchairs and crutches.
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Buildine Stronger Communities

The Board makes concerted efforts to grve back to the Society and this is aligned to
our corporate social responsibility pillars and our core values. In December 2022,

KRB staff chose to share Christmas smiles with children of Bridge of Hope and

Jochebed Children's homes in Nakuru County. The Bridge of Hope Children's home
accommodates 87 children from 1 to 18 years who have been abandoned or whose

L,\'II
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parents are imprisoned. Jochebeds Children's home was founded in 2009 as an
outreach programme to help the less fortunate in the community. The staff engaged
with the children playing games and offering mentorship and encouragement. The
staJf donated beds. clothing, foodstuffs, and toys.
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The Directors have the Pleasure of presenting their report togethcr with the audited

financial statements foi the yea. "t.l.,i 
30* june 202i, which show the state of the

Board's affairs.

REPORT OF DIR RS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AUDITORS

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

R. MO AME , MBS

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Board is primarill' engagcd in management of the Kenya Roads Board Fund

togethem,ith tther mandaiesspecif ied in the Kenl'n qoud. Board Act, 1999'

RESULTS

The results for the year enci..1 3gtl' lune 2023 are set out on in these Financial

Statcments.

DIRECTORS

The Boarrl of Directors u'ho held office during the vear is shown ou pages VII k) XII'

In accordance r,r,ith section 7(4) of the Kenya Roads Board Ac t,7999', the Chniruwt nnd

uertbers of thc Board, otlnr tlnn ex<ffcinl nenrbcrs slnll lotd ofice .fut n period of tltree

yenrs.froni the ttate of appoiriruent bttt shnll tx eligiblc .for re-nlltoilthlrcnt for one further.
-ternr 

of n Txriorl not'exce:eding tlvee years.'The appointment and vacation of office of

any member of the Board shall be in accordance with sL'ction 2 of the second

Schedule to the Kenya Roatls Board Act,1999.

At the c{ate of this report, the Board was not aware oI any circumstances which u'ould
have renclereci the values attributed to the assets in the financial statements

misleac{ing.

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Board's books of
account in accordance with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public

Audit Act 2015.

+l e/rs
SECRETARY THE BOARD

I l\
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STATEMENT OF THE BOARD'S RESPONSIBILITIE S

Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2072 and the Kenya Roads Board
Act, 1999 require the Directors to prepare financial statements in respect of the Board,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs oI the Board at the end of the
financial year and the operating results of the Board for that year.

The Directors are a required to ensure that the Board keeps proper accounting
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Board.
The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Board.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Board's
financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Board
as at the end of the financial year ended q1 3Qtt'June 2023.

This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate financial management
arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the
reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the entity; (iii) designing,
implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material
misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the
Board; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the Board's financial statements, which have
been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and
prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner required by the PFM Act,2012
and the Kenya Roads Board Act,1999.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Board's financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of the Board's transactions during the financial year ended 30th

lune 2023, and of the Board's financial position as at that date. The Directors further
confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the Board, which
have been relied upon in the preparation of the Board's financial statements as well
as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Board will not
remain a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this
statement.
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Approval of the Flnanctal Statements - The Kenya Roads Board Fund Financial

siLments were approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

(

a

HON.
CHAIRPERSON
DATE:4/sl9+

KOLGH R.MO ,MBS
DIRECTOR
DATE: +/g/A+

L

A(
FRANCIS TI{EI,JRI
DIRECTOR
DATE: '+/e /r+
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

E tr ln n c i n g,.1 < c o u n t u h i I i t.t'

HEADqUARTERS
Anniversary Towers

Monrovia Street
P.O. Box loo84-ooloo

NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KENYA ROADS BOARO FUNO FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accountlng standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,

efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure the Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance

which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal

operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk

management environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all

relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and

responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Acl,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

01 
- 'on

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya Roads Board Fund set
out on pages 'l to 31, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
30 June, 2023 and the statement offinancial performance, statement of changes in net

assets, statement of cash flows and Statement of comparison of budget and actual

amounts for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the

Report ol lhe Auditor-General on Kenyq Roads Board Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 202 3



,
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the PublicAuditAct,20l5. lhave obtained allthe information and expranations which to the best of my rnowredg" 

"nJ 
;;ri"i,'*# Inecessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financialposition of Kenya Roads Board Fund as at 30 June, zo23 and of its finJnci"t'p"rro*"n."
and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with lnternational public SectorAccounting standards (Atcruar Basis) and compty wm Kenya Roads Board Act, 1999
and the Public Finance Management Act,2012.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for SupremeAudit lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Kenya noaas g;ard rrnoManagement in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of gtiies. t travl tumrreo ottrerethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance *itn otf,"r 
"tni""trequirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in li"ny".'-r u"ri"r"

that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriat" to prorije a basis for
my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professionar judgement, are of mostsignificance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no"ley-aubit matters toreport in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As 
-required by Articre 229(6) of the constitution, based on the audit procedures

performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawiulness and
Effectiveness in Use of public Resources section of my report, I confirm that nothing elsehas.come to my aftention to cause me to berieve th;t pubric resources nave not oeenapplied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

Disbursement of Road Agency Funds Through the State Department for Roads
The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 10 to the financial
statement reflects disbursements of Kshs.80,772,5g0,000. Note 10 indicates that theamount was allocated to various road agencies, Kenya wildlife service 

"nJ 
tn" st"t"Department for Roads. Review of the bink statemenis for the Board,s bank accounts

revealed that except for the amount of Kshs.6g0,o37,ooo allocated to k nva wirarre
service the balance of Kshs.80,092,543,000 was transferred to the staie oepirtment tor
Roarls. Management did not provide a satisfactory explanation for the failurEio transfer
the funds directly to the respective agencies.

Auditor-Generql on Kenya Roads Board Fund for the yeor ended 30 June, 2023
Report of ,he
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Failure to disburse funds directly to the respective road agencies may have resulted in
delay in receipt of the funds iry the road agencies leading to delay in implementation of
the planned development programmes.

REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1Xa) of the Public Audit Act,2015 and based on the audit
procedures performed, I confirm that nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls) 2315 and 2330. The standards require that I plan and perform
the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective processes and systems of internal
controls, risk management and overall governance were operating effectively, in all
material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Board's ability to continue to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Board or cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 oI lhe Public Audit
Act,2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Board's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensurlng that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to overall

Report ofthe Audiror-General on Kenya Roads Board Fund for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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governance and risk management and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Anide 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of lhe Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from

a
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a

a

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Board's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exasts,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Board to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Board to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA CBS
AUDITOR.GENERAL

Nairobi

22March,2024

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya Roqds Board Fund for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

30rH IUNE 2023

F FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTHSTATEMENT O
IUNE 2023

The notes form an integral Part of these financial statements

KShB'000 KShs'000

Note 20?:v2022

REV UE

Revenue from Non-Excha Transactions

Levies, Fines and Penalties I 84,398,576 85,302,942

Revenue from Exchan Transactions

Finance lncome 9 2,038,670 2,130,803

TOTAL REVENUE 86A37,245 87A33,745

DISBURSEMENTS 10 80, 97,923,032

EXPENDITURE

Use of ods and services 11 285,375 275,il3

Em I ee Costs L2 534,784 462,263

Board 13 63,007 57,694

Strate ic Plan Im lementation Costs 14 141,358 113,091

iation 15 57,472 54,351

Contracted Services "16 68,670 226,282

C rate Social Res onsibili "t7 360,315 253,792

7,5M,981 LH\,076

TOTAL EXPENSES 82,277,56L 99,366,M8

OTHER GAI LOSSES

Gain Loss on sale of assets 18 "t24 140

Gain Loss on forei excha transactions "t9 1,658 1,153

7,787 1,293

KRB FI,IND BALANCE FOR THE YEAR 4,\67,466 (11,931,010)



KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
F]NANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR'I'HE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL SITION AS AT 3OTH IUNE 2023

NET ASSETS/EOUITY
N on-Cune t Liab ilit ies

8539,060KRB Fund Reserves 25 "n,s99,948

KRB ations Reserves
KRB Staff Funds
Assets Revaluation Reserve

26

27

79,582 u9,263
4"18,924 375,491

28 21,255 0

TOTAL NET ASSE-TS/EQUITY 72,069,713 9203,815
The notes form an integral part of these Financial Statemcnts. The financial
statements were submitted by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

t*L
cra r'{.inl}N AGUMBI (rCpAK No. 8983)
DIRECIOR, FINANCE & IjUND MANAGEMENT

M"rl{^tr-
po\r',tss
GEI\ERAI,

4 N"*a.c+
DATE

.3

DATE

o

R. MOH
DIR

FRANCISTHEURI
DIRECTOR

1

KShs'00O KShs'Ofi)
Note 2022n023 2OZ7IZ0Z2

ASSETS
Cufient Assets
Cash and Cash equivalents 20 28,290,3?7 45,232,070

Work in Progress 27 9,838 0
3,174Receivables 22 3,750

28,303,975 45,235,724
Non-Cutent Asscts
Propcrty & Equipment 2i 208,815 92,937
TOTAL ASSETS 28512,729 4s328,062

LIABILITIES
Cunent Liabilities
Payables 24 "t6,443,077 36,724,247

TOTAL NET ASSE'TS 12,069,773 9,203,874

DATE



KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023

ENT OF CHANG ESINNET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTHSTATEM
IUNE 2023

CURRENT YEAR

PRIORYEAR

The notes form an integral Part of these financial statements

l

KRB
Fund

Reserves

KRB
Operations

Reserveg

KRB Staff
Funds

Asset
Revaluation

Beserve
Total

KShs'000 KShs'000 KSh3'000 KShs'000 KShs'000

2022As at 1.t 8,539,050 349,263 31sA97 9,203,8L5

KRB Fund Balance for the

Year 4,76-1A66 4,767,466

Disbursement of Prior
Year Road Funds (1.,100,s7n (7,7W,sm

Road Maintenance
Interventions (139,610) (139,610)

Regional Offices
diture (80,072\ 180,072)

Transfer to KRB Staff
Funds (100,000) 100,000

Interest eamed on KRB
Staff Funds 3,437 3,437

Asset Revaluation reserve 21,255 2t,255

As at 30th une 2023 11,599,948 29,582 q78,928 21,255 LL059,n3

KRB
Fund

Reserveg

KRB
Operations

Reeervea

KRB Staff
Funds

TotaI

KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'mO

A6 at 1" July 2021
20,6L0,832 208500 308,085 27,727,478

KRB Fund Balance for the Year (72,071.,772) 112,0n,n2\

lnterest eamed on Staff Funds 7,406 7,406

KRB Operations Balance for the Year
740,753 140,763

As at 3fth fune Z)22
8"531050 y925t isAn 9203,815



KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH IUNE 2023

Note
202212023 2021,12022

KShs 'Ofl) KShs'fiX)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVMES
RECEII'TS
Levies, Fines and Penalties 8 u,398,576 85,302,942
Finance Income 9 2,038,670 2,L30,803
Gain/ (Loss) on foreigr exchange transactions 18 1,658 1,153

Gain/(Loss) on sale of assets 79 124 140

Total Receipts 86,439,027 8ru35,038
PAYMENTS
Disbursements 10 80,772,580 97,923,032
Use of goods and services 11 285,375 275,543
Employee Costs 12 534,7U 462,263
Board Expenses 13 63,007 57,694
Strategic Plan Implementation Costs 14 141,358 113,091

Depreciation 15 51,472 il,357
Contracted S€rvices L6 68,670 226,282
Corporate Social Responsibility L7 360,315 25.3,792

Total Payments 82,2n,567 99,366,M8
Adjustments for
Non-Cash Items (Depreciation) 15 5-L,472 54,351

Changes in working capital balances (19,691.,7M) 21,518,058

Net Cashllows From (Used In) Operatins Activities 11.5,478,76n 9,647399

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTryITIES
Purchase of Property and Equipment 23 (747,347) (94,973\

Net Book Value of disposed assets 23 7,246 42

Net cash From (Used in) Investing Activities (146,09s) (94,931)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVMES
(Decrease)/Increase in KRB StaIf funds "t03,437 7,406
(Decrease)/lncrease in KRB Operations Reserves (319,682\

Disbursement of Prior Year Road Aqencv Funds (1,lm,577)
Net cash InIIows (Outflow) from Financing
Activities (1.375,8221 7,4W

NET (DECREASE)ANCREASE IN CASH (16,941,6f,31 9,553,874

MOVEMENT IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
At the beginning of the year 45,232,077 35,678,"136

Net (Decrease)/lncease in Cash (1.6,941,683) 9,553,874

AT THE END OF THE YEAR 20 28,290,328 45,232,017

"l



KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023

ARISONOFBU DGETAND ACTUAL AMOUNTSSTATEMENT OF COMP
FOR THE Y ENDED 3OTH NE 2023

Oridnal
Budget

Adiustme
nts

Final
(Revised)

Budget

Actual on
Compara
ble Basis

Performa
nce

Differenc
e

o/o of
Utilizatio

n

No
te KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShr'0@ KShs'000

a b s=(a+b) d s=(c-d)
t = dlc '

100

REVENUE

Levies, Fines and Penalties a 82,421,000 0 82,421,m u,398,576 -'t,977,576 702%

Finance lncome b 3,400 0 3,400 2,O38,670 -2,035,270 59961,%

on sale of assetsGain Loss 0 0 0 124 -124 0%

Gah/ (Loss) on foreign exchange
Uansactions 0 0 0 1,658 -1,658 0"4

TOTAL REVENUE 82,424,400 0 82,424,&0 86A39,427 4,O,l,627 @053o/o

DISBURSEMENTS 80,n2,580 0 80,n2,580 E0,n2,580 0 100%

EXPENSES

Use of s and services 305,746 7,654 3'.t3,399 285,375 're nr< 91%

Employee Costs c 640,497 29,196 669,694 534,7U 134,910 80%

Board Expenses 59,910 10,000 69,910 63,007 6,903 9004

Stsategic Plan lmplementation
Costs 115,000 30,000 145,000 141,358 3,642 97"k

Depreciation d 0 0 0 51,472 -5^1,472 0%

Contracted Services e 378,252 -225,852 92,400 68,670 23,730 74%

te Social Res biti T 91,2"15 71,891 163,106 360,315 -197,209 227%

TOTAL EXPENSES 82,303,200 -n,171 82,226,M9 822n,567 -57A72 1000/o

NET zuND BALANCE 127,2@ n,7tt 198,311 4,t6rAffi -3,963,155 2098o/o

CAPTTAL EXPENDITURE 1272W 77,771 198,311 t47,vl 50,970 74o/o

s



KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023

Budget Notes:

n) Ieoies, Fin* and Pennlties relate to Road Mnintenance Let y amounting to Kshs.84.j9 bi ion

was abooe tlt projcctcd budget of khl 82.42 billion, due to highcr than budgct Fuel laoy

collections cluring thc fnancial r1ear.

b) Finance income relates to interest eamed on cash balances held at the bank. The Board. d.oes

not budget for interest income, saae for a minimal budget of Kshs. 3.4 miltion on intoest on

its operations furuls. Tlrc reaenue reported is signifcnntly abooe budget as a result of higher

bank interest rales offtrcd by bank during tlrc fnancitl year.

c) Tlte under exprnditure in cmployee costs is mainly as a rcsult of staff emoluments which stood

at 75% ol butlget, due to delay in recruitment of staffwhich was ongoing as at the close of the

fnancial year.

d) DErecintion is a non-cnsh itun wlich is not budgcted for

e) Tlu undcr cxpcnditurc in contricted scnsiccs is mainly as a result of saaings in consultancy

costs. The under expenditure in consultancy costs ts d.ue to saaings on procurement oloarious

consultnncies (c.g., Strategic Plan consultnncy, Economic hnpnct of Electric Mobilig on

Sustainability of the RML, Post Stra.tegic Plan Enryloyee Satisfactiott Suraey) amounting to

Kshs. 10.83 milliott. Furth$, the Board did not engage consultants for ISMS surzseillance

audits and staff recruitnent, resulting to saaings antounting to Kshs. 8.7 million.

f) Corpornte social responsibility costs anounted to Kshs.360.31million compared to thebudget

oJ Kshs. L63.1,0 million, represcnting ouerall expenditure of 221% for tlw period. This is

mainly duc to application of saaings arnounting to Kshs. 201.26 million to road mainteflance

interacntions. Duing thc frst hatf of the fnanciat year, the Goocmntent intuoduced austeity

mcasures tatgeting a budget cut of khs. 300.00 billion. The focus of the budget cuts was on

rccurrent cxpenditurc. As a result, thc Board lud sa.rritlgs of Kshs. 207.26 million on its

realrrer* expenditure, urhich has been re-allocated and aVplied to Road Maintenance

lnteroentions. Tlre requisite Board approoal utas obtained for tfu re-allocation.

g) T'le difference bchoeen thc original budgct and fnal (rnixtl) budgct is rluc to reallocations

The requisite Board approoal was obtained for the re-allocations.



KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FrNeNCnr sTATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR t*"' 3gru IUNE 2023

1.0 GENERALINFORMATION

Kenya Roads Board (KRB) is a state body corporate established under Chapter 408

of tlie Laws of Kenya'Kenya Roads noaia eci'which came into effect under Legal

Notice No. 7 of 1999. The Board is domiciled and oPerates within the Republic of

Kenya.

As stipulated in the Kenya Roads Board Act, 1999 "T'lu object and purpo-se t'or.tolich the

Board is establislted is to ooersee the toad nefwork in Kenya and coordinate the maintenance'

rihtabilitation and dettelopment funded by the ftnd and ti aduise the Ministet responsible for
mattcrs pcrtaining to roads on all matters rclated thcrcto'"

2.0 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the

measurement at re-valued o^o.r.rt, 
- 
of certain items of property, plant and

equipment, marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value' impaired

assel at their estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities

at their present value'

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The entity's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with and comply

with International Public Sector Accouniing Standards U[,,SAS). The financial

statements are presented in Kenya shillings, which is the functional and reporting

"r.r".'t"y 
of the entity. The accounting policies have been consistently applied to all

the years presented.

The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis' The cash flow statement is

prepared using the indirect method.

3.0 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

Relevant new standards and amendments to published standards effective

for the year ended 30 June 2023.

Nno and amended standards and interpretations in issue effectioe in tlrc year ended

i0 lune 2023.

I

Applicable: 1"t January 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance' faithful

representativeness, and comparability of the information that a

reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about social

IPSAS 42: Social Benefits

1



KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023

ts. The information provided should help users of the financial

statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature ofsuch social benefits provided by the Entity.

(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit schemes;

and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's

financial performance, financial position, and cash flows.

benefi

Other improvements to IPSAS Applicable I" January 2023

o IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General

Government Secror. Amendments to refer to the latest System of
National Accounts (SNA 2008).

. IPSAS i9: Employee Beney'ls. Now deletes the term composite

social security benefits as it is no longer defined in IPSAS.

o IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and

Measurement. Standard no longer included in the 2023 IPSAS

handbook as it is now superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable

from lstJanuary 2023.

u Neu and amenileil stanilard.s and interpretations in issue but not yet

4fectiae ia the year eniled 30 lrne 2023.

IPSAS 43 Applicable Is January 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,

presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that

lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully

represents those transactions. This information gives a basis for users of

financial statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial

position, financial performance and cashflows ofan Entity.

x
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The new standard requircs entities to recognize, measure an

information on right ofuse assets and lease liabilities

d present

Applicable l"t January 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured

at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the

depreciation of such assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented

separately in the statement of financial position and the results of

discontinued operations to be presented separately in the statement of

financial performance.

IPSAS 44: Non- Current

Assets Held for Sale and

Discontinued Operations

ll. Early adoption of standards

The entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in year

2022/2023.

(a) Statement of Compliance

The financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2023 have been

prepared in accordance with and comply with lnternational Public Sector

Accounting Standards (lf5AS) as issued by International Public Sector

Accounting Standards Board IIISASB), the Public Finance Management Act,

2012, Public Audit Act, 2015 and Kenya Roads Board Act.

For the Public Finance Management Act, 2012, Public Audit Act, 2015 and

Kenya Roads Board Act reporting purposes, in these financial statements the

"balance sheet"/ "statement of assets and liabilities" is represented by and

is equivalent to the statement of "financial position" and the "profit and loss

account"/ "statement of income and expenditure" is Presented in the

statement of " financial performance".

4.0 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the PrePalation of these financial

statement; are set out bel;w. These policies have been consistently applied to

all years presented, unless otherwise stated.
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(b) Bnsis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are presented
in the functional currency, Kenya Shillings (Kshs.), and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousands (Kshs. '000) except when otherwise
indicated.

k) Prcsentation of Finaflcial St.tte rcrrts

The financial statements comprise of statement of financial performance,
statement of financial position, statement of changes in net assets/equity
and the statement of cash flows and the notes to the financial statements.

The Board classifies its expenditure by the nature of expense methodology.

The disclosure on risks is presented in the financial risk management
objectives and policies contained in as part of the notes.

The statement of cash flows shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents
arising during the period from operating, investing, and financing activities.

(d) Budget Infonnation

Intemational Public Sector Reporting Standards allow for non-disclosure
where (a) an entity is not required to disclose its budget information publicly
and (b) the entity has elected not to present its approved budget publicly.

It is observed that the Approved KRB Budget amounts for the year have not
been exceed.

(e) F unetional Currencies

(i) Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in the functional currenry, Kenya
Shillings (Kshs.). which is the Board's presentational currency. The
financial information is rounded to the nearest thousands (Kshs. '000)
except when otherwise indicated.

(ii) Transactions and Balances

a) Translatior.r of Foreign Currencres

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are converted into
the functional currency using the prevailing exchange rates ruling at
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the dates of the transactions' Assets and liabilities denominated in

i.*tg" ""."".tes 
have been translated at the mean rates of exchange

rulin"g at the end of the reporting period

The foreign currency exchange gains and.losses resulting from the

settlement of such transactiotis u-na from the translation at year end

"r"hu.,g" 
rates of monetary assets and.li.abilities denominated in

foreign currencies a,e 
'"cogf 

i'ed through the statement of financial

pe.fo:rmance in the year in which they arise'

b) Translation of Foreign Operations

The Board does not have any foreign operations'

(fl Reaenue RecoSrtition

Revenue is generally recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance

on accrual basis.

Interest income from all interest-bearing financial instruments is recognized

in the Statement of Financial Perforirance on accrual basis using the

ef fective interest method.
Other incomes are recognized as they accrue urrless the collectability is in

doubt.

(g) Castt anil Cash Eqfiztalatts

For purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise

of cash and cash balances held at the bank with less than three months

maturity from the statement of financial Position date These include notes

and coins on hand and deposits held at call with banks'

(h) Receianbles

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable

payments that are not quoted in an active market They arise when the Board

i.irides -or,uy o, ,ut,ri.". directly to a debtor with no intention of trading

the receivable.

Receivables are amounts due from the Kenya Roads Board Fund which are

accrued in the ordinary course of business and there is no intention of

trading the receivable.

Receivables are recognized initially at the fair value (tsansaction price/

carrying value less any discountsi They are subsequently measured 
-at

amortized costs using the ef(ective intlrest method less provision for

impairment.
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A provision for impairment of receivables is made when there is objective
evidence that the Board will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of receivables.

The carrying value less discounts and any impairment provision of
impairment is assumed to approximate their fair values. For financial
instruments such as short-term receivables, no disclosure of fair value is
required when the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair
value.

Receivables are classified as current assets if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of business, if longer). If not, ihey
are presented as non-current assets.

(i) lnttentories

Given the nature of the Board's operations and mandates, items in stock
relate to stationery. Stationery costs are recognized as an expense when
deployed for utilization in the ordinary course of the Board,s operations. As
at 30th of ]une 2023, the Board did not have any inventory.

$) Property anil Equipment aud Depreciation

All property and equipment are initially stated at cost and thereafter at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment loss. Historical cost comprises expenditure initially incurred to
bring the asset to its location and condition ready for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Board and the
cost can be reliably measured. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the Statement of Financial Performance during the financial year
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on straight line basis at annual rates estimated to
write down the carrying value of the assets over their expected useful lives.
The annual depreciation rates in use are: -

Computer Equipment
Office Equipment

Motor Vehicles
Fumiture & Fittings

Rate
33 t1t%
72.5v"

25.0'/,
72.5%

An item of property and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
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(l) Leases

The determination of whethet an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based

on the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether

the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset

or assets and the arrangement coveys a right to use the asset.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease

transfer substantially all risks and rewards of ownership to the Board as the

lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where the Board is the lessee, the total Payments made under oPerating
leases are charged to the statement of financial performance on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease. When an operating lease is terminated
before the expiry of the lease period, any payment required to be made to
the lessor by way of penalty is recognized as exPense in the year in which
termination takes place.

Rentals payable under operating leases are amortized on the straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

(m) lmpairnent of Nott-firancial Assets

the asset. Any gain or losses on de-recognition of the asset is included in the

Statement of Financial Performance in the year the asset is de-recognized'

Depreciation is charged in full in the year of acquisition of an item of

p.op".ty and equipment while nil dePreciation is charged in the year of
disposal.

(k) Payables

Payables include any obligations to Pay for Soods or services that have been

acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers and may also

include payments in resPect social benefits where formal agreements for
specific amounts exist.

Payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at

amortized cost using the effective interest method. The historical cost

carrying amount of payables subject to the normal credit terms usually

approximates fair value.

Payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year

or less (or in the normal operating cycle of business if longer). If not, they

are presented as non{urrent liabilities.
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At each reporting period end, based on intemal and external sources, the
Board reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Board estimates the recoverable value of the asset.

Any impairment losses are recognized as an expense in the Statement of
Financial Performance whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount. A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the assets
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is credited
to the Statement of Financial Performance in the year reversals are
recognized.

(n) Prouisions

Provisions are recognized when the Board has a present obligation (egal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Board will be
required to settle the obligation. and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reportinS
period end, considering the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation.

( o) Re ti re me nt B e ncfi t Ob ligat i o ns

The Board operates a defined contribution provident fund for eligible
employees. The fund is administered by an independent administration
company and Trustees. It is funded by contributions from both the employer
and employees.

The Board and its employees also contribute to the statutory pension
scheme, the National Social Security Fund (NSSF). Contributions are

determined by the local statute and are currently limited to Kshs. 200 per
employee per month. The Board also sets aside on quarterly basis the
gratuity for its employees who are on contract basis.

The Board's contributions in resPect of staff retirement benefit costs are

charged to the statement of financial performance, as they fall due or in case

of service gratuity as they accrue to each employee.
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(p) Guarantees, Acceptances atd Lettets of Creilit

Guarantees are accounted for as off statement of financial position

transactions and disclosed as contingent liabilities'

(q) Stbsequett Eoents

There have been no subsequent events that would have an imPact on the

financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2022'

(r) Compatatiaes

Except otherwise required, all amounts are rePorted or disclosed with

comiaratirre information' Where necessary, comparative figures have been

adjuited to conform to changes in presentation in the curent year
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5.0 SIGNIFICANTJUDGEMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINITY - (CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES,

IUDGEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS)

In the process of applying the Board's accounting policies, the directors have
made estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
Iiabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Although these estimates are based on the directors' knowledge of current
events and actions, actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumpticins are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The key areas of judgments and sources of uncertainty in estimation are as set
out below:

(a) Critical Iudgnrcnts in apphting the Boaril's accotrnting policies

In the process of applying the Board's accounting policies, judgments have
been made in determining: -
- Whether the assets are impaired;
- The classification of financial assets;
- The going concern.

(b) Critical Accounting Estirnates tnd Asaunptiotrs

(i) Useful Liz,es of Property, Plant ancl Equipnent

The directors make estimates in determining the depreciation rates for
property and equipment. The rates used are set out in the accounting
policy (j) above for property and equipment.

The Board reviews the estimated useful lives of plant and equipment at the
end of each reporting period. During the financial year, no changes to the
useful lives were identified by the directors.
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(ii) Cont ingertt L ilalt i lities

As disclosed in these financial statements, the Board is exposed to various

contingent liabilities in the normal course of business'

(iii) Proaision for Doubtful Debts

The organization reviews its travel advances Portfolio to assess the

likelihood of impairment. Provision for impairment of receivables is

established whenlhere is obiective evidence that the Board will not be able

to collect all amounts due. Where necessary, an estimation of the amounts

irrecoverable is made in that year. Provision for impairment shall be

recognized upon approval by the Board of Directors'

(ia) Other Proaisions

The Directors evaluate the status of these exposures on a regular basis to

assess the probability of the Board incurring related liabilities' However'

provisions are only made in the financial statements where' based on the

iir".tort' evaluation, a present obligation has been established'

Other provisions are recognized when the Board has legal or conskuctive

obligation because of pas[ events, for which it is probable that an outflow

of ec-onomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

(u) hnpainnent Losses

At each reporting period end, the Board reviews the carrying amounts of

its tangib[e and intangible assets to determine whether there is any

indicati-on that those assets have suffered an imPairment loss' lf any such

indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to

determine the extent of the imPairment loss.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an

individual asset, the Board estimates the recoverable value of the asset'

Any impairment losses are recognized as an expense immediately' Where

an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset

is incieased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. A reversal

of an impairment loss is recognized as income immediately.
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5.0 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Board does not have any branches/ reporting segments. All the operations
of the Board are managed from the registered office. The core business of the
Kenya Roads Board continues to be management of the Kenya Roads Board
Fund together with other mandates as stipulated in the Kenya Roads Board Act.

There is no distinguished component of the Board that is engaged in providing
an individual service that is subject to risks and returns that are different from
the main mandates of the Board.

7.0 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Board has initiated and facilitated the process that will see the enhancement
of risk management. The Board has an integrated risk management
framework/strategy. The Board's approach to risk management is based on risk
governance structures, risk management policies, risk identification,
measurement, monitoring and reporting. The risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to ensure they are in tandem with the micro and
macro environment, regulatory guidelines, industry practice, market conditions
as well as the services offered.

The Board recognizes the critical role the risk management will continue to play
in its endeavor to carry out its business in a dynamic environment. The Board
is committed to ensure that corporate govemance and risk management are
deeply entrenched in the Board's strategy and culture. An elaborate risk
management strategy that will provide direction on matters of policy and guide
the implementation and control has been developed.

This risk management framework captures the following among other things: -

. The Board's risk appetite and parameters;

. The Board's risk matrix that highlights the rating of risks;

. The structure of managing risks and accountabilities

. The processes, procedures and reports that manage risks;

. The mitigating factors, prevention, contingency plans, and controls

The Board's core business involves major engagements with financial
transactions and processes which pose certain risks. Three types of risks are
reported as part of the risk profile namely operational, strategic, and business
continuity risks.

a) Operational risks are events, hazards, variances, or opportunities which
could influence the achievement of the Board's compliance and operational
objectives.

b) Strategic risk is a significant unexpected or unpredictable change or outcome
beyond what was factored into the organization's strategy and business
model which could have an impact on the entity's performance.
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The Board's exposure to risks, its obiectives, policies, and processes for
managing the risk and the methods used to measure it have been consistently
applied in the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The Board aims

therefore to achieve an apProPriate balance between the risk and retum and

minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

The financial management obiectives and policies are as outlined below:-

a) Liquiility Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Board will not have sufficient financial
resources to meet its obligations when they fall due or will have to do so at

excessive costs. This risk can arise from mismatches in the tirning of cash

flows from revenue and capital/ operationaI outflows, assets, and liabilities
according to their maturity profiles and can occur where cash flow streams
have been discontinued, etc. Funding risk arises when the necessary

liquidity to fund illiquid asset positions cannot be met at exPected terms and
when required.

The objective of the liquidity and funding management is to ensure that all
foreseeable operational, capital and loan commitment expenditure can be

met under both normal and stressed conditions and the mismatch is

controlled in line with allowable risk levels.

The Board has adopted an overall balance sheet approach which
consolidates all sources and uses of liquidity, while aiming to maintain a
balance between liquidity, cash flows and interest rate considerations. The
Board's liquidity and funding management Process includes: -

c) Business continuity risks are those events, hazards, variances, and

opportunities which could inJluence the continuity of the entity'

One of the keys risks the Board has identified in both the operational and

strategic areas is the sustainability of the Road Maintenance Levy in line with
the Constitution. Financial risk as defined in IPSAS 15 and the management

thereof, form part of this risk area.

The Members of the Board have the overall responsibility for the establishment

and oversight of the Board's risk management framework. The Board has

delegated iis risk management to the'Audit and Risk Committee.'One of the

responsibilities of this committee is to review risk management strategies to

ensure business continuity and survival' Most of the financial risks arising from
financial transactions and Processes are managed by the'Finance and Planning

Committee' of the Board.
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o Projecting cash flows and considering the cash required and optimizing
the short-term requirements as well as the long-term funding,

o Maintaining balance sheet liquidity ratios,
. Maintaining/ soliciting a diverse range of funding sources with

adequate back up facilities,
. Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities, where

applicable,
o Maintainin8 liquidity and funding contingency plans.

The table shows the undiscounted cash flows on the Board's financial assets
and liabilities on the earliest possible contractual/ maturity date. The
liquidity ratio inF\ 2022/ 23 is'1,.72 (F\ 2021. / 22:-1,.25)

Financial Assets Note 2022/23 2027,t22

KShs '000 KShs'000
Cash and Cash equivalents 20 28,288,669 45,232,0-10

Work in Progress 21_ 9,838 0

Receivables 22 3,750 3,174

Total Financial Ass€ts 28,302,257 45,235,724

Financial Liabilities
Payables 24 76,443,0L7 36,124,247

Total Financial Liabilities 16,443,017 36,724,247

NETLIQUIDITY L7,859,240 9,rLo,8n
LIQUIDITY RATIO 1.72 t.E

The Board has an established corporate governance structure and Process of
managing risks regarding guarantees and contingent liabilities. All
guarantees issued are approved by the Members of the Board and are

administratively managed by the finance department.

The primary sources of revenue for the Board are receipts (rom the Kenya
Roads Board Fund, mainly receipts from fuel levy fund. The Board pursuing
additional sources of revenue for which aPProval has been sought from
Ministry of Finance.

b) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates,

prices, and interest rates. The objective of market risk management policy is

to protect and enhance the Statements of Financial Position and performance

by managing and controlling market risk exPosures within acceptable

parameters, and to optimize the funding of business oPerations and facilitate
capital expansion. The Board is exposed to the following market risks: -

1
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O Currency Risk

Currency risk arises Primarily from purchasing imported goods and services

from overseas or indirectly via local supplies. The currenry risk is minimal as

cash and cash equivalents held with banks are dominated in Kenya Shillings

and there are minimal dealings in foreign currency.

The Board is exposed to the price risk of the fuel levy. The Board collects Kshs'

18 per liter of diesel/petrol imported into the country. The Board is exposed

to the extent that the levy on diesel and petrol is reduced or eliminated due to

changes in the international fuel prices, inflation, or other macro indicators'

The Road Maintenance Levy is backed up by an Act of Parliament; changes

thereof require approval by Parliament.

(ii) Pricc Risk

(iii) Interest Rnte Risk

The Board closely monitors interest rate movements and seeks to limit its
exposure by managing the interest rate and maturity skucture of assets and

liabilities on the statement of financial position. The interest rates on call

deposits held in financial institutions are fixed and agreed uPon on monthly
basis. The management is in regular contact with the approved banks in a bid
to obtain the best interest rates and therefole able to plan for the resulting
income.

The interest rate risk is minimal as the Board does not have any borrowings

c) Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide
variety of causes associated with the Board's Processes, persormel,
technology, and infrastructure and from external factors other than credit,
market, and liquidity risks such as legal and regulatory requirements and
generally acceptable standards of corporate behavior.

The Board seeks to ensure that key operational risks are managed in a timely
and effective manner through a framework of policies, procedures, and tools
to identily, assess, monitor, and report such risks.

The Board is exposed to various risks associated with effects of fluctuations in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates on its financial position and cash

flows. Interest margin may increase as a result of such changes but may reduce

losses if unexpected movement arises.
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The Board's objective is to manage operational risk to balance the avoidance
of financial losses and damage to the Board's reputation with overall cost
effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and
creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of
controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior management. The
responsibility is supported by the development of overall standards for the
management of operational risk in the following areas: -

. Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the
independent authorization of transactions.

. Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of financial
transactions

. Compliance with regulatory and legal requirements

. Documentation of controls and procedures

. Requirements for the yearly assessment of operational risks faced and
the adequacy of controls and procedures to address the risks identified

. Requirement for the reporting of operational losses and proposed
remedial action

o Development of Business Contingency Plans
o Training and professional development
. Ethical and business standards
o fusk mitigation, including insurance where it is effective.

Operational risks are documerrted in the 'Framework for Management
Control' and are managed by the Internal Audit function established to
spearhead and coordinate risk management activities. The measures taken
include proactively identifying, analyzi^g, and mitigating risks in all facets
of the business.

d) Compliance and Regulatory Risk

Compliance and regulatory risk include the risk of non-compliance with
regulatory requirements. The Board has complied with all extemally
imposed requirements throughout the year.

e) Legnl Risk

Legal risks are the risk of unexpected loss, including reputational loss,

arising from defective transactions or contracts, claims being made or some

other event resulting in a liability or the loss for the Board, failure to Protect
the title to and liability to control the riShts to assets of the Board (including
intellectual property right), changes in law, or jurisdictional risk.



l, )a

a
KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023

The Board manages legal risk through the'Audit and Risk Committee,' legal

function, legal riik poiicies and procedures and the effective use of intemal

controls and extemal lawyers.

8.0 LEVIES, FINES AND PENALTIES

2022123 202V22
KShs'000 KShs'000

Road Maintenance Levv u,398,576 8s,302,942

Total 84,398,575 85,302,942

Revenue represents receipts of Road Maintenance Levy and Transit tolls from

the Kenya Revenue Authority, and Interest Income.

The Board did not receive any transfers of any form, (including assets, giIts,

donations, goods and service-in-kind, advance receipts, pledges, expenses paid

on behalf and concessionary loans) from national and local government, public
entities, Donor & Intemational develoPment agencies.

9.0 FINANCE INCOME

2022,t23 202V22
KShs'000 KShs'Ofi)

Interest Income 2.,038,670 2,730,8M

Total 2,038,670 2,730,8M

1O.O DISBURSEMENTS

The Board allocated funds to the road agencies as per the table below;

Agenry
Total Total

z02w 2027t22

KShs'000 KShs'000

Kenya National Highways Authority 27,740,461 34,085,408

Allocation by KRB/Ministry 6,800,355 8,150,728

Kenya Wildlife Service 680,037 815,073

Kenya Rural Roads Authority 27,761,"t69 19,430,358

Kenya Urban Roads Authority 10,200,548 9,707,980

Other Programmes 0 9,770,082

Road Annuity Progra[une 13,s90,000 "t6,757,"186

Kenya Roads Board 0 472,217

Total Funds Disbused in the Year 80,n2,580 97,923,032
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2i22/23 20ntt22
Particulars KShs O00 KShe'000

Advertising & Publicity 50,279 59,978

Audit fees 2,900 2,900

Conferences & Seminars 74,697 74,782

Rent & Rates 68,139 55,821

Telephone, Postages & Internet 1 0,651 10,395

Travelling, Vehicle Maintenance &
Repairs 24,192 21,235

General OIIice Expenses 47,443 43,033

Office Printins & Stationery 7,073 7,39
Total 285,37s 275,543

11.0 USE OF GOODS AND SERVICES

12.0 EMPLOYEE COSTS

2022123 20tttz2
Particulars KShs'fi)O KShs'fl)o
Staff Emoluments 406,525 366,798

Training & Development 99,920 58,598

Other Staff Costs 28,338 26,867
Total 594,7U 464263

Other Staff Costs include staff welfare costs and staff recruitment & surveys costs

The average number of employees during the year was: -

No. of Employees m2223 2i27f22
Regr:lar Employees 100 91

Contract Employees
(lntemship Programme) I 12

Contract Employees
(Graduate Engineers Programme) 31 43

Total 139 146

13.0 BOARD EXPENSES

2022123 20n t?2

Particufa$ KShs'0(D KShs'm0
Directors Emoluments 14,990 27,n9
Insurance 529 343

Field Activity Costs 3,313 6,734

Training 39,287 29,399

Board Evaluation/ Induction 4,894 40

Total 63,007 57,694

Dhectors' emoluments include members sitting allowances, lunches, and chairperson s
honoraria. Field activity costs include costs incurred for directors'field activities and
transport & accommodation.
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14.0 STRATEGIC IMPLEMENTATION COSTS

2022121 zoalz2

DepartmentqBections KShs'000 KShs'000

Executive & Other Board Activities 23,8U 14,885

Urban & Park Roads Directorate 72,732 72,763

Policy & Strategy Directorate 72,936 72,362

Highways Directorate 72,608
-t2,873

Rural & Countv Roads Directorate 12,888 72,940

Finance& Fund Mgmnt. Directorate L3,785 14,973

C rate Services Directorate 24232 19,450

l,egal Services Directorate 4,790 9,872

Supply Chain Management Dept 2,559 2,97L

Regional Offices 20,944 0

Total 141"358 113,091

stratedc PIan implementation costs are incurred by dePartments and sections towards

the realization of the Board's strategic plan implementation and other routine

functions of the Board.

15.0 DEPRECIATION

z0z2/23 202,/22

Particulars KShe '000 KShs '000

Depreciation 57,472 54,351

Total Other Operating Costs 51472 54,351

16.0 CONTRACTEDSERVICES

mryts 20?1122

Particulars KShs '000 KShs'000

Lrgal Fees 20 838

Staff Medical Insurance 4t,n6 4L,404

Securitv 6,89s 4,747

Consu ltancies 79,979 179,293

Total 68,670 226,282

17.0 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

2022/l 2jJ'21/22

Particulars KShs '000 KShs'0m

Corporate social responsibility 350315 2s3,792

Total Other Operating Costs 360315 25.3,792

The Board's contribution towards the CorPorate Social Responsibility (CSR) amounted to
Kshs 350.31 million (FY 2021l22: Kshs. 253.79 million).
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These costs mainly related to Road Maintenance interventions undertaken by the Board
amounting to Kshs. 273.15 million, Graduate Engineers programme amounting to Kshs. 58.32
million and Other CSR activities amounting to a total of Kshs. 28.83 million.

1.8.0 GAIN/(LOSS) ON SALE OF ASSETS

202T23 202],2
KShs'000 KShs '000

Gain on Disposal of Assets "124 740
TotaI 124 140

19.0 GAIN/(LOSS) ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

202?,3 202v72
KShs'ffiO KShs'Ofi)

Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on FOREX 1,658 1,153

Total 1,658 1,153

20.0 CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

2022123 202y22
Particulars KShs'000 KShs '000
Amounts held in Kenya Shs. 28,?.80,059 4s,232,0r0
Amounts held in USD L0,2,68 0

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 2E,290,327 45,232,O1O

The Board is not exposed to credit risk on cash and bank balances as they are held
with sound financial institutions approved by Central Bank of Kenya. The carrying
amounts of the Board's cash and cash equivalents are dominated in Kenya Shillings.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
balances with less than three months' maturity from the date of acquisition, including
cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of thrce months.

21.0 WORK IN PROGRESS

2022/23 202V22
Particularo KShs'fiX) KShs '000

Enterprise Resource Programme 9,838 0

Total Work in Propgess 9p38 0

Work in progress amounting to Kshs. 9.83 million relates to the KRB Enterprise
Resource Programme (ERP) whose implementation is currently onSoing. It is
expected that the implementation of the ERP will be completed by end oI the
3rd quarter of FY 2023 /2024.

l(r
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22.0 RECEIVABLES

Receivables constitute short term liquid assets which are recoverable within one

year. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value

tf each class of receivable mentioned above. The Board does not hold any

collateral as security.

202T23 20n/22

Particulars KShs'000 KShs '000

Prepayments & Deposits 7,728 1,728

Cash Im rests and Advances 2,021 1,385

Total Receivables 3,750 3,774

The aged analysis of receivables is as follows:

23.0 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The Board is of the opinion that the net book values represent the fair value of
the equipment.

0-6 months 5-12 months Total

Particulars KShs '000 KShs'000 KShs'000

D sits & Prepayments 7,728 L72A

Cash Im and Advances 2,021 2,027

2,021 1,728 3,750

COMPUTER
&

SOFTWARE

FURNITURE
& FITTINGS

MOTOR
VEHICLES

OFFICE
EQUIPMENT

TOTAL

DepreciaHon Rate 33.3 o/o 72.5 o/o 25 o/o 72.5 o/o

Acquisition Cost
1. Cost at start of the year 3L,1.66,947 37,642,5"15 22,651,993 7,465,977 92,937A27

2. Additions/ Purchases 26,430,082 "t03,007,049 't2,780,000 5,123,57"1 747,340,702

3. Revaluation 3,099,468 1.,722,335 15,198,007 1,234,873 21.,254,83

4. Cost of Disposed assets (zooo) (8,000) (1,000,000) (231,000) (L,246,W\

Total - Acquisition Cost 60,689,49\ 136,363,899 49,6/10,000 73,593,421 260,286,877

Depreciation
1. Depn. at start of the year 0 0 0 0 0

2. Depn. For the period (20,2235m (77,739,223\ (12,410,000) (7,699,778) (51,477,9781

3. Depn. of Disposed assets 0 0 0 0 0

Total - Depreciation (20,2X,sm (17,7392231 (12,410,000) (7,699)781 (57,477,9781

Net Book Value (30th |une
2fi31

40,465,974 Ltg,224,575 37,230,000 17,894,243 208,874,894
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24.0 PAYABLES

Payables are expected to be settled in KRBs normal operating cycle and within twelve
months after the reporting period and are not attached to an unconditional right to
defer payment of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

20ry23 202y22
Particulars KShs '00O KShs '000
Road Ag Balances Payable 15,423,65't 2i,782,125
Other Road Activities Pa able & Roads aruruit Funds 407,475 72,026,899
Trade & Other Pa ables 6L"l,941 375,374

Total Payables t6,u3,017 36,724,347

Trade and Other payables related to accrued expenses during the year, trade and
taxes payable to Kenya Revenue Authority. The payables are incurred in the normal
course of business and were settled in the period subsequent to the report date.

The maturity analysis of payables is as follows:

25.0 KRB FUND RESERVES

202223 20nn2
Particulars KShs'000 KShs'000
KRB Fund reserves 1-1,599,948 8,s39,060

Total KRB Operations reserves 17,s99,48 8J31060

KRB Fund reserves increased from Kshs.8.53 billion in prior period to Kshs. 11.59

billion in the review period.

26.0 KRB OPERATIONS RESERVES

2022/2s 20n1t72

Particulars KShs'000 KShs '000

Accumulated KI{B Operations reserves 29,582 349,263

Total KRB Operations reserves 29,582 349,263

KRB Operations reserves decreased from Kshs. 349.26 million in prior Period to Kshs.

29.58 billion in the review period.

0-5 months 6-12 months Total
Particulars KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
Road Agency Balances Payable "15,423,651 75,423,657

Other Road Activities Payable 407,425 407,425

Trade & Other Payables 611,941 671,,94L

617,941 15,831,,O76 I6,443,O77



x I
KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023

27.0 KRB STAFF FUNDS

20ry2s 20zr122

Particulars KShs'000 KShs'0@

KRB Car Loan Staff Fund 57,746 57,772

KRB Mortgage Scheme Staff Fund 361,782 258,3?0

Total KRB Staff Funds 478,928 375,491

The Board established independently managed Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme

Funds for memhrs of staff. KRB Staff funds increased from Kshs. 315.49 million in
prior period to Kshs. 418.92 million. The growth is represented by a transfer of Kshs.

100.00 million from KRB operations reserves and Kshs. 3.43 milhon being bank

interest eamed during the year.

28.0 ASSET REVALUATION RESERVE

20ry2i 202'V22

Particulars KShs'000 KShs'0fl)

Assets Revaluation reserve 27,255 0

Total Assets Revaluation Reserve 21,255 0

During the year, the Board carried out an independent revaluation of its loose assets

resulting to a reserve of Kshs. 21..25 miilion.

29.0 RETIREMEI{T BENEFITS SCHEME OBLIGATIONS

The Board operates a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for eligible
employees. The assets of the plan are held separately from those of the Board in funds
under the control of trustees. The scheme is administered by an independent
administration company and is funded by contributions from the Board and
employees. The Board's obligations to the staff retirement benefits plan are charged
to the Statement of Financial Position as they fall due or, in the case of service
gratuity, as they accrue to each employee.

The Board also makes contributions to the statutory defined contribution scheme,

National Social Security Fund. This is a defined contribution scheme registered
under the National Social Security Act. The Board's obligations under the Scheme

are limited to specific contributions legislated from time to time, which are currently
at Kshs. 200 per employee per month.

The total pension expense recognized in the income statement of Kshs. 24.36 million
(F"{ 202'1. / 22: Kshs. 27.81 million) represents contributions payable to the Plan by the
Board at rates specified in the rules of the plan. The expense has been included within
the staff pension costs under staff costs.
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3O.O FAIR VALUE

The directors consider that there is no material difference between the fair value
and carrying value of the company's financial assets and liabilities, where fair
value details have not been presented.

31.0 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

AII capiqal commitments contracted for/authorized at the reporting period end

have been recognized in the financial statements.

32.0 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The Directors are not aware of any matter or circumstances arising since the end
of the financial year, not otherwise dealt with in the financial statements, which
would significantly affect the financial position of Kenya Roads Board and
results of its operation as laid out in these financial statements.

33.0 COMPARATIVES

Where necessary, comp.rative figures have been adjusted to conform to
changes in presentation of the Financial Statements as required by Intemational
Public Sector Accounting Standards and any amendment whenever necessary
in the current year

34.0 CURRENCY

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Sfullings (IGhs.'000).
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